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LETTER OF INTRODUCTION

HCS Inc.  Commercial General Contractor 
365 Wayside Dr. Waco TX 76705 | Office 254.829.3200 | Fax 254.829.3201 | info@hcs-gc.com 

Founded in 1989, HCS Inc. has grown to be a major competitor in the commercial construction industry though
out Central Texas. With over 30 years experience in the construction industry HCS Inc. has specialized in public
and private general contracting and construction management. We have gained a reputation of quality
performance with integrity striving to achieve the highest quality of workmanship as well as delivering timely
completion.

HCS Inc. has specialized in educational institutions such as Universities, Public and Private Schools, Military, Public
Housing Authority's, State, City & Federal Government Projects.

HCS Inc. has completed hundreds of projects over the years and we have a long standing relationship with many
of our clients which shows our commitment to continually provide a quality and on time project completion. At
HCS our commitment is to provide our clients with the utmost satisfaction in quality workmanship with
uncompromised integrity.

HCS Inc. has significant experience dealing with and completing commercial construction projects. We pride
ourselves with timely completion of our projects. As shown on our enclosed project list HCS Inc. has completed
many multifaceted projects on or before our scheduled completion dates. HCS Inc. has completed multimillion
dollar school projects over summer break, formany years and we have always been substantially complete before
the opening of school, many projects are short schedule multimillion dollar jobs completed in three months.
Another example of our commitment to complete projects on or before the scheduled finish date is the Waco
Housing Authority apartment renovations, valued at 4.6 million dollars, which was finished six months ahead of
schedule.

HCS Inc. has completed projects for many entities and a large percentage of our work continues to be with repeat
clients, such as the City of Waco, Texas Sate Technical College, Waco Housing Authority, Austin ISD, Round Rock
ISD, Texas Dept. of Health & Human Services, as well as multiple Federal agencies.

Rosemary Ballerino, CEO-President 
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SECTION 004113  

BID FORM  LUMP SUM  

1.1 BID INFORMATION A. 

Date: 

B. Bidder Name: 

C. Bidder Address: 

D. Project Name: Killeen Community and Senior Center 

E. Project Location: 2201 E. Veterans Memorial Blvd., Killeen, TX 76543  

F. Owner: The City of Killeen, 3201-A S. WS Young Drive Killeen, TX 76542 

G. Architect: Randall Scott Architects, Inc., 2140 Lake Park Blvd., Suite 300, Richardson, TX 
75080 

H. Architect Project Number: 2150.00 

1.2  CERTIFICATIONS AND BASE BID  

A. Base Bid, Single-Prime (All Trades) Contract: The undersigned Bidder, having carefully examined 
the Procurement and Contracting Requirements, Conditions of the Contract, Drawings, 
Specifications, and all subsequent Addenda, having visited the site, and being familiar with all 
conditions and requirements of the Work, hereby agrees to furnish all materials, labor, equipment 
and services necessary to complete the construction of the above-named project, according to 
the requirements of the Procurement and Contracting Documents, for the stipulated sum of: 

 1. ________________________________________________Dollars ($______________). 

B. Alternates: 
1. Pickle Ball Courts__________________________________Dollars ($______________). 
2. Covered Outdoor Seating____________________________Dollars ($______________). 
3. Dishwashing Equipment_____________________________Dollars ($______________). 
4. Gymnasium Divider Curtain__________________________Dollars ($______________). 

1.3  BID BOND  
A. The undersigned Bidder agrees to execute a contract for this Work in the above amount and to 

furnish performance and payment bonds as specified within 10 calendar days after a written 
Notice of Award, if offered within 90 calendar days after receipt of bids, and on failure to do so 
agrees to forfeit to Owner the attached cashier's check or bid bond as liquidated damages for 
such failure, in the following amount constituting five percent of the Base Bid amount above: 

 1. ________________________________________________Dollars ($______________). 
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B. In the event Owner does not offer the Notice of Award within the time limits stated above, the
Owner will return to the undersigned the cash, cashier's check, certified check, U.S. money order, 
or bid bond.

1.4 TIME OF COMPLETION 
A. The undersigned Bidder proposes and agrees hereby to commence the Work of the Contract 

Documents on a date specified in a written Notice to Proceed to be issued by Owner, and shall
fully complete the Work within ___________ calendar days.

1.5 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDA 
A. The undersigned Bidder acknowledges receipt of and use of the following Addenda in the 

preparation of this Bid:

1. Addendum No. 1, dated ____________________.
2. Addendum No. 2, dated ____________________.
3. Addendum No. 3, dated ____________________.
4. Addendum No. 4, dated ____________________.
5. Addendum No. 5, dated ____________________.

1.6 SUBMISSION OF BID 

A. Respectfully submitted this ____ day of ____________, _______.

B. Submitted By:___________________________________(Name of bidding firm or corporation).

C. Authorized Signature:___________________________________(Handwritten signature). D.

Signed By:______________________________________________(Type or print name).

E. Title:__________________________________(Owner/Partner/President/Vice President).

F. Witnessed By:___________________________________________(Handwritten signature).

G. Attest:_______________________________________________(Handwritten signature).

H. By:___________________________________________________(Type or print name).

I. Title:________________________________(Corporate Secretary or Assistant Secretary). J. 

Street Address:___________________________________________________________.

K. City, State, Zip:__________________________________________________________.

L. Phone:_________________________________________________________________.

END OF SECTION

6.       Addendum No. 6, dated
7.       Addendum No. 7, dated
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INTRODUCTION 

The City of Killeen Community Development Department provides Federal funding to promote 
suitable living environments, expand economic opportunities for persons of Killeen � including low and 
moderate income persons, and to meet affordable housing needs. Funding is made available through 
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) formula grant programs; specifically 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and Home Investment Partnerships Program (HOME).  

These funds provide city departments and local organizations with a means to enhance public services, 
public facilities, and public improvements. Public facilities and improvements include construction, 
rehabilitation, and /or renovation of housing and buildings, street reconstruction projects, sewer and 
waterline rehabilitation projects, parks and recreation projects and other related construction projects. 
Affordable housing activities include new construction, substantial rehabilitation, accessibility 
modifications, and/or renovation to vacant or occupied housing units.  

In order to complete these projects, the City contracts with reputable, experienced contractors to 
provide quality results in expenditure of its federal funding. The Community Development Department 
is also required, to the greatest extent feasible; to include employment and/or contracting opportunities 
arising out of expenditure of HUD funding, be made available to low- and very-low income persons 
and business owners, and business owners that employ low-income individuals, particularly those who 
are recipients of government assistance for housing. 

Contractors interested in participating in City of 
Killeen Community Development Department projects must complete the qualification and certification 
application/approval process (QCAP). The certification process must be complete prior to an award of 
any Community Development Department federally funded construction project. Construction projects 
(excluding single-unit housing rehabilitation/reconstruction) with total construction related costs 
exceeding $2,000 require compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Acts with payment of prevailing 
wage rates to all persons employed and or subcontracted to work on the project. Additionally, 
certified payroll documentation compliance is required and must be submitted weekly throughout the 
project.  

Upon approval and contract award, QCAP contractors and their subcontractors, along with their 
employees, are expected to maintain a certain level of professionalism and keep an open line of 
communication between program staff, city departments, and project owners for the duration of the 
project schedule. This method will insure the federally funded projects are completed to everyone�s 
satisfaction.   

Community Development Staff is available to meet with contractors to provide a brief orientation on 
the application, bidding procedures, and program operations. Applicants will have an opportunity to 
ask questions, become familiar with program rules and regulations, and to meet with program staff. 
Technical assistance with this application, bid documents and governing regulations will also be 
provided by Community Development Staff.  

Interaction between the contractor, the city and owner is essential and necessary to bring about the 
success of any project. We look forward to your participation and cooperation in assisting us with 
achieving our goals in meeting the needs of our communities. 

For more information, please contact our office M-F 8:00 to 5:00, at (254) 501-7845. 

City of Killeen 
Community Development Department
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DEFINITIONS

The following terms and phrases are defined as follows: 

Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts shall mean 
compliance with federal rules implementing Executive Order 12549 and 12689 regarding debarment, 
suspension or other Government-wide exclusion initiated as the result of a sanctioned party from 
further participation in HUD procurement and non-procurement programs and other Federal 
Government programs as a measure to ensure the highest standards of professional conduct and ethical 
business practices by the Federal Government�s business partners.  

�Minority Person� shall mean citizens of the United States, whose identity affiliation exists among one 
or more of the following groups whose members are: 

a. Asian-Indian (subcontinent Asian): a U.S. citizen whose origins are from India, Pakistan and
Bangladesh, Bhutan, the Maldives Islands, Nepal or Sri Lanka.

b. Asian-Pacific:  a U.S. citizen whose origins are from Japan, China, Indonesia, Malaysia,
Taiwan, Korea, Vietnam, Laos, Cambodia, the Philippines, Thailand, Samoa, Guam, and the
U.S. Trust Territories of the Pacific or the Northern Marianas.

c. Black:  a U.S. citizen having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa:
d. Hispanic:  a U.S. citizen of true-born Hispanic heritage, from any of the Spanish-speaking

areas of the following regions: Mexico, Central America, South America and the Caribbean
Basin only;

e. Native American:  a person who is an American Indian, Eskimo, Aleut or Native Hawaiian,
and regarded as such by the community of which the person claims to be a member of a
North American tribe, band or otherwise organized group of native people who are
indigenous to the continental United States and proof can be provided through a Native
American Blood Degree Certificate (i.e., tribal registry letter, tribal roll register number).

�Minority-owned Business� or �MBE� shall mean a for-profit enterprise, regardless of size, physically 
located in the United States or its trust territories, which is owned, operated and controlled by minority 
group members.  

�Minority group members� are United States citizens who are:  
a. Asian-Indian (subcontinent Asian): a U.S. citizen whose origins are from India, Pakistan and

Bangladesh, Bhutan, the Maldives Islands, Nepal or Sri Lanka.
b. Asian-Pacific:  a U.S. citizen whose origins are from Japan, China, Indonesia, Malaysia,

Taiwan, Korea, Vietnam, Laos, Cambodia, the Philippines, Thailand, Samoa, Guam the U.S.
Trust Territories of the Pacific or the Northern Marianas.

c. Black:  a U.S. citizen having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa:
d. Hispanic:  a U.S. citizen of true-born Hispanic heritage, from any of the Spanish-speaking

areas of the following regions: Mexico, Central America, South America and the Caribbean
Basin only;

e. Native American:  a person who is an American Indian, Eskimo, Aleut or Native Hawaiian,
and regarded as such by the community of which the person claims to be a member of a
North American tribe, band or otherwise organized group of native people who are
indigenous to the continental United States and proof can be provided through a Native
American Blood Degree Certificate (i.e., tribal registry letter, tribal roll register number).
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�Ownership by minority individuals� means the business: 
i. which is at least 51% owned by such individuals or, in the case of publicly-owned

business,  at least 51% of the stock is owned by one or more such individuals;
ii. whose management, policies, major decisions and daily business operations are

controlled by those minority group members;

�Section 3 Economic Opportunities for Low- and Very Low-Income Persons� or �Section 3� shall mean  
Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended. 

Section 3 Business Concern (s3BC) means a business concern, as defined as: 
a. 51% or more of the business is owned by section 3 residents (recipients eligible for housing

and community development assistance available through HUD programs;
b. Whose permanent, full-time employees include persons, at least 30% of whom are

currently section 3 residents, or within 3 years of the date of first employment with the
business were section 3 residents; or

c. That provides evidence of a commitment to subcontract in excess of 25% of the dollar
award of all subcontracts to be awarded to business concerns that meet the qualifications set
forth in (a) or (b) above.

Section 3 Business Registry means a listing of firms that have self-certified that they meet one of the 
regulatory definitions of a Section 3 business and are included in a searchable online database that can 
be used by agencies that receive HUD funds, developers, contractors, and others to facilitate the award 
of certain HUD-funded contracts; the registry can also be used by Section 3 residents to identify 
businesses that may have HUD-funded employment opportunities.  

�Women-owned Business Enterprise� or �WBE� shall mean a for-profit enterprise, regardless of size, 
physically located in the United States or its trust territories, which:  

a. all prospective members must provide clear and documented evidence that at least 51% or
more is women-owned, managed, and controlled, to include direction over management,
policy, fiscal, and operations;

b. the business must be open for at least [the most recent] six months;
c. the business owner must be a U.S. citizen or legal resident alien.
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ORGANIZATION:

How many years has your organization been in business? 

How many years has your organization been in business under its present business 
name? 
Under what other or former names has your organization operated?

If organization is a CORPORATION answer the following: Not Applicable 
Date of incorporation: State of incorporation:   

President�s Name: Vice President�s Name:

Secretary�s Name: Treasurer�s Name:

If organization is a LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY Not Applicable 
(LLC) answer the following: 

Date of incorporation: State of incorporation:   
President�s Name: Vice President�s Name:

Secretary�s Name: Treasurer�s Name:

CORPORATION
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If organization is a PARTNERSHIP/FRANCHISE answer the  Not Applicable 
following: 
Date of organization: State organized in:   

Type of partnership: 

Name of general partners:

If organization is SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP/INDIVIDUALLY OWNED
answer the following: 

Not Applicable 

Date of organization: State organized in:   

Name of Owner:  

 If the form of your organization is other than those listed above, describe it and name the 
principals: 

Description of organization: 

Name of  Principal:     
 

Name of Principal:    
 

Name of Principal:     
 

Name of Principal:    
 

Name of Principal:    
Last, First, Middle 

Attach additional sheet as necessary. 
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LICENSING: Not Applicable

List jurisdictions and trade categories in which your organization is legally qualified to do business, 
and indicate registration or license number(s), and expiration date: 

Jurisdiction Name Trade Category Registration/License Number Expiration
Date 

APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAMS:           

Do you employ apprentices or trainees ?       Yes  No 

If YES, is the apprentice or trainee program registered with the Texas Workforce Commission or U.S. Department 

of Labor�s Bureau of Apprenticeship & Training?      Yes     No 
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EXPERIENCE:           

List the categories of work that your organization normally performs with its own forces/employees.

Claims and Suits: 

Has your organization ever failed to complete any contract awarded to it?  
NO YES Attach detail 

sheet 

Are there any judgments, claims, arbitration proceedings or suits pending or outstanding against your 
organization or its officers/principals? 

NO YES 
Attach detail sheet

Has your organization filed any law suits or requested arbitration with regard to construction contracts 
within the last five (5) years? 

NO YES 
Attach detail sheet

State total dollar value of work in progress and under contract:
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Project History � most recent 5 years:

List the major projects your organization has completed in the past five years, giving the name of
project, owner, architect, contract amount, date of completion and percentage of the cost of the work
performed with your own forces.

Project Name Owner Architect Contract Amount
Date of

Completion

% of Work
Cost with

Own Forces

State average annual amount of construction work performed during the past five years:

List the construction experience and project commitments of key individuals in your organization:
1. Name of Key Individual:

Construction Experience :     
Years Description

Project Commitments:
Years Description

Construction Experience :     
Years Description

Projject Commitments:
Years Description
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2. Name of Key Individual:

Construction Experience :     
Years Description

Project Commitments:          
Years Description

3. Name of Key Individual:

Construction Experience:     
Years Description

Project Commitments:          
Years Description

4. Name of Key Individual:

Construction Experience :     
Years Description

Prroject Commitments:          
Years Description

Construction Experience:     
Years Description

Projject Commitments:          
Years Description

Construction Experience :
Years Description

Projject Commitments:          
Years Description

Construction Experience :     
Years Description

Prrojject Commitments:          
Years Description
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REFERENCES:
Complete the information for each reference type. 
A minimum 3 references are required to respond; please communicate with those you have listed. 
Incomplete information or no response from the reference may delay the certification process 
and/or disqualify the applicant.  

Trade Reference Category Contact Name E-Mail Address Telephone 

Bank Contact Name E-Mail Address Telephone 

Surety: Name of Bonding Company Name of Agent E-Mail Address Telephone 

Customer Name Address Project Type E-Mail Address Telephone 

   Project Type: (R)esidential, (C)ommercial, (S)ub-contractor, (SU)pplier
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FINANCING:
Financial Statement � Attach a financial statement, preferably audited, including your 
organization�s latest balance sheet and income statement showing the following items: 
Sole Proprietors -  attach a copy of the most recent filing of Schedule C form 
Partnerships � attach a copy of the most recent filing of Form 1065 

Current Assets (e.g., cash, joint venture accounts, accounts receivable, notes receivable, 
accrued income, deposits, materials inventory and prepaid expenses) 

Net Fixed Assets As applicable 

Other Assets As applicable 

Current Liabilities (e.g., accounts payable, notes payable, accrued expenses, provision for 
income taxes, advances, accrued salaries and accrued payroll taxes) 

Other Liabilities (e.g., capital, capital stock, authorized and outstanding shares par values, 
earned surplus and retained earnings).  

Name and address of firm preparing attached financial statement and date thereof:  NA 

Is the attached form/financial statement for the identical organization named on page 5 of this 

application?                                           Yes  No 
If not, explain the relationship and financial responsibility of the organization whose financial 
statement is provided (e.g., parent- subsidiary, etc.) 

 NA 

Will the organization whose financial statement is attached act as guarantor of the contract for 

construction?             Yes  No        NA 
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INSURANCE:         
Each contractor and subcontractor is required to carry insurance in the limits prescribed by each 
specific project or at a minimum, those stated below:  

-Contracts under $50,000, minimum limits of:
General Aggregate $300,000 
Products & Completed 
Operations Aggregate  $300,000 
Personal & Advertising Injury $300,000 

Fire Damage (Any One Fire)   $  50,000 
Medical Expense 
(Any One  Person) $5,000 

- Contracts exceeding $50,000, minimum limits of:
General Aggregate            $1,000,000 
Products & Completed 
Operations Aggregate  $1,000,000 
Personal & Advertising Injury $500,000 
Fire Damage (Any One Fire) $ 50,000 
Medical Expense 
(Any One  Person)  $   5,000 

Owner�s and Contractor�s protective liability insurance policy 
naming the City/Owner as an additional insured. Coverage 
shall be on an �occurrence� basis, and the policy shall be 
issued by the same insurance company that carries the 
Contractor�s liability insurance. Minimum limits of liability 
shall be as follows: 
---Contracts under $50,000: 
Per Occurrence $100,000 
Aggregate $300,000
--- Contracts exceeding $50,000: 
Per Occurrence $500,000 
Aggregate   $1,000,000 

Automobile Liability Insurance for all owned, non-owned and 
hired vehicles with minimum limits for: 
a. Contracts under $50,000:
Bodily Injury each person  $100,000
Each occurrence $300,000 
Property Damage limits $50,000 
or Combined Single 
Limit            $300,000 
b. Contracts exceeding $50,000 to a maximum of $500,000:
Bodily Injury each person   $250,000
Each occurrence   $500,000 
Property Damage limits  $100,000 
or a Combined Single Limit  $600,000 

Comprehensive General Liability:     
Company _________________________________  Agent ________________________ Email______________________ 

Current Policy Period _____________________      

Limits of Coverage __________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Comprehensive Auto:  
Company _________________________________  Agent ________________________ Email ______________________ 

Current Policy Period _____________________     

 Limits of Coverage _________________________________________________________________________________________ 

The Prime contractor and EACH subcontractor is required to carry Workers� Compensation insurance with Employer�s 
Liability for any project that is funded in whole or in part by federal funds.   

Workers� Compensation with 
Employer�s Liability: 
Company _________________________________ Agent ________________________ Email ______________________ 

Current Policy Period _____________________     

 Limits of Coverage _________________________________________________________________________________________ 
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APPLICABLIITY TO SECTION 3          
The APPLICANT agrees to comply with the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban 
Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u (section 3) in that employment and other 
economic opportunities generated by City of Killeen HUD-assisted projects covered by Section 3, 
shall, to the greatest extent feasible, be directed to low- and very low-income persons, particularly 
persons who are recipients of HUD assistance for housing. Applicant further agrees to comply with 
HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 135, which implement Section 3 and that they are under no 
contractual or other impediment that would prevent them from complying with the part 135 
regulations. Additionally, applicant agrees to send notice to local HUD housing providers, area labor 
organizations, Texas Workforce Commission, and to post notice at the work site of the availability of 
subcontracts, employment and training positions associated with a City of Killeen Community 
Development Department HUD funded project. Applicant agrees to include this Section 3 clause in 
every subcontract subject to compliance with regulations in 24 CFR part 135. 

Printed Name: 

Signature: 

Title: Date: 

CERTIFICATION,  NOTICES,  AFFIDAVIT:     

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY 
EXCLUSION FOR COVERED CONTRACTS: 

The City of Killeen Community Development Department is required to screen each potential 
contractor to determine whether each has a right to obtain a contract in accordance with federal 
regulations on debarment, suspension, ineligibility and voluntary exclusion for covered contracts. 
Additionally, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) policy prohibits the 
making of awards to entities with outstanding federal debt. The System for Award Management 
(SAM) is the Official U.S. Government system designed to streamline the process of obtaining and 
procuring federal contracts by integrating all federal procurement systems (Central Contractor 
Registration (CCR), Federal Agency Registration (FedReg), Online Representations and Certifications 
Application (ORCA) and Excluded Parties List System (EPLS)) into one system. SAM is the federal 
source for identifying debarred, suspended or ineligible entities in accordance with Federal Executive 
Orders 12549 and 12689, and HUD policy. Subsequently, each covered contractor and his/her 
subcontractors � regardless of tier, must be screened prior to executing a contract.   

By signing below, the applicant certifies that neither he/she nor its principals presently owe 
outstanding federal debt or is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in a federal award by the City of Killeen Texas. 

Printed Name: 

Signature: 

Title: Date: 
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NOTICES: 
The City of Killeen Community Development Department (CDD) reserves the right to request any 
additional information deemed necessary to determine if a firm is certifiable. The burden of proof of 
ownership, management and control of the business is on the applicant. Failure to cooperate and/or 
provide requested information, within the time specified, is grounds for termination in the processing 
of your application for this certification. If at any time the City of Killeen Community Development 
Department (CDD) has reason to believe that any person or firm has willfully and knowingly 
provided incorrect or false information, the City will cease processing this request and issue a �non-
certifiable� conclusion whereby the applicant may not re-apply for a minimum of one year. A de-
certification will be issued and become effective immediately if the applicant fails to notify the CDD of 
a change in ownership, management or control within thirty days of said change.   

CONTRACTOR DIRECTORY/DATABASE DISCLOSURE: 
The CDD does not disclose information which may be regarded as proprietary or confidential under 
federal and/or state law. However, as a part of our outreach efforts, the CDD maintains a contractor 
directory/database which is available to the general public. The information in the directory/database 
consists of firm name, contact person, address, telephone number(s) and contractor URL (web site 
address). No proprietary or financial information is included. 

AFFIDAVIT & AUTHORIZATION TO RELEASE INFORMATION 
This application must be signed by each owner upon whom certification status is provided. A material 
or false statement or omission made in connection with this certification application is sufficient 
grounds for denial of certification or revocation of a previously approved certification and may 
subject the person and/or entity making the false statement to any and all civil and criminal penalties 
available pursuant to applicable federal and state law as well as city ordinance. 

The undersigned swears or affirms under penalty of law that he/she has read and understands all 
questions in this application and that all of the foregoing information and statements submitted in 
connection with the application are true and correct to the best of  his/her knowledge and include all 
material information necessary to accurately identify and explain the operations and capabilities of 
_______________________________________________________________ along with the ownership, 
management and control thereof. The undersigned affirms and expressly agrees that the firm�s 
directory information, as stated above, will be available to the public in the Killeen CDD contractor 
directory/database.  

Furthermore, the applicant authorizes the Killeen CDD to verify information contained in this 
application, in connection with this certification request, for any individual and/or firm listed. Such 
information includes but is not limited to: prior history of the individual and/or firm; income, financial 
(bank and similar bank entities) balance, credit history and federal tax returns. A copy of this 
authorization may be accepted as an original.   

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY FOLLOWS 
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Printed Name:

Signature:

Title: Date: 

NOTARY:

STATE OF ________________ §
COUNTY OF ___________________ §

BEFORE ME, A Notary Public, on this day personally appeared _______________________ known to
me to be the person and officer whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and
acknowledged to me that he or she executed the same for the purpose of and consideration herein
expressed, in the capacity therein stated.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE this the ________ day of ____________________,
____________.

____________________________________________
Notary Public, in and for the State of __________________

Reproduce this form as necessary to complete this application.
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INDEMNITY

Applicant has filed or is concurrently filing with the City of Killeen Community Development 
Department (CDD), an application for Contract Qualification/Certification for the purpose of inducing 
the CDD to accept, review, and act upon such application. The contractor hereby agrees to indemnify 
and hold harmless the City, the CDD, and representatives against all costs, losses, damages, expenses, 
and liabilities of any kind arising from or in connection to the CDD�s acceptance, review, approval or 
disapproval of such application for Contractor Certification. It is expressly agreed that the provisions 
of this agreement shall survive any approval/disapproval of such application(s) for certification or 
failure to issue any such certification. 

Name of Organization:

By:

Printed Name:

Title:

This Indemnity Agreement shall be effective upon its execution by the applicant this ___________ day

of _________________________, _________, and its acceptance by the CDD as indicated by its

execution below.

NOTARY:
STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF ___________________ §

BEFORE ME, A Notary Public, on this day personally appeared _______________________ known to me to be the person and officer
whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that he or she executed the same for the purpose of
and consideration herein expressed, in the capacity therein stated.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE this the ________ day of ____________________, ____________.

____________________________________________
Notary Public, in and for the State of Texas

Accepted this ___________ day of _________________________, _________

By: _________________________________

Printed Name: _____________________________________

Title: _____________________________________________
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Allen Barker
Superintendent

Bobby Martin
Superintendent

Dale Rogers
Superintendent

Joe Ballerino
Superintendent

John Overton
Senior Superintendent

Kick McElroy
Superintendent

Max Shaw
Civil Superintendent

Patrick Ortiz
Superintendent

Ruben Castillo
Civil Superintendent

Zach Berry
Senior Superintendent

Hagen Kelly
Foreman

Terri Haskell
Senior Civil Project Manager

Gil Kalinec
Project Manager

Tom Klingensmith
Chief Estimator
Project Manager

Jeff Kirkpatrick
Project Manager

Jon Little
Senior Project Coordinator

Deanne Ballerino
Administrative Assistant

Simon Lucas
Project Coordinator
PreConstruction

Sara Hildebrandt Gaspar
Senior Project Controls Manager

Dave Downing
Senior Project Manager, AIA

PERSONNEL LIST

Carl Ballerino
Chief Operating Officer

Rosemary Ballerino
Chief Executive Officer

President

Mike Ballerino
Vice President / Director

Zack Pearce
Vice President / Operations

HCS Inc. Commercial General Contractor
365 Wayside Dr. Waco TX 76705 | Office 254.829.3200 | Fax 254.829.3201 | info@hcs gc.com

_HCS Personnel List_2023_01 12.xlsx



EXECUTIVE TEAM

HCS Inc.  Commercial General Contractor 
365 Wayside Dr. Waco TX 76705 | Office 254.829.3200 | Fax 254.829.3201 | info@hcs-gc.com

The Executive Leadership of HCS Inc. represents almost 120 Years of collective
experience and expertise between the Field, Administration, and Procurement
areas of the Commercial Construction Industry. Multiple perspectives allow for a
significant degree of Leadership and Forethought available to Owners, Designers,
and Build Teams during the course of any project.



ROSEMARY BALLERINO
Ph.: 254 829 3200 | RosemaryB@hcs gc.com

HCS Inc. Commercial General Contractor
365 Wayside Dr., Waco, TX 76705 | Office 254 829 3200 | Fax 254 829 3201 | info@hcs gc.com

As Co Founder and CEO of HCS, Rosemary Ballerino has been an integral part of the direction and success of the company.

HCS Work Experience:

 1989 Present HCS Inc. Commercial General Contractor, Waco, TX CEO/President
o 2021 Present CEO/President

 Work with executives to establish short term objectives and long range goals, and related plans
and policies.

 Present regular reports on the status of the company's operations to the board of directors and to
company staff.

 Oversee the organization's financial structure, ensuring adequate and sound funding for the
mission and goals of the company.

 Ensure the company's compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, and standards.
 Serve as the company's representative to the board of directors, shareholders, employees,
customers, the government, and the public.

o 1997 2021 Secretary of Corporation / Chief Accountant
 Perform financial analysis and reporting to management.
 Perform month end accounting activities such as reconciliations and journal entries.
 Generate financial reports and statements to Managers for review.
 Analyze financial discrepancies and recommend effective resolutions.
 Monitor expenditures, analyzes revenues and determines budget variances.
 Assist in budget preparation and expense management activities for assigned accounts.
 Assist in auditing activities by providing necessary information and preparing requested
documentations.

 Monitor and record financial transactions according to company policies and regulations.
o 1989 1997 Office Manager / Accounts Payable & Accounts Receivable

 Keep accurate records of incoming and outgoing payments to the organization
 Collaborate with team members to provide necessary financial reports to senior level managers
 Handle payroll functions as required by the organization
 Review financial information and documents quarterly and annual basis
 Assist in the preparation of tax documents for employees
 Handle general ledger bookkeeping where necessary
 Look for and provide solutions for accounting irregularities
 Manage client accounts and payment schedules

Previous Experience

 1986 1989 Carl Ballerino Remodeling, Milford, NJ Bookkeeper
o Office Manager / Accounts Payable & Accounts Receivable



CARL BALLERINO
Ph.: 254 829 3200 | CarlB@hcs gc.com

HCS Inc. Commercial General Contractor
365 Wayside Dr., Waco, TX 76705 | Office 254 829 3200 | Fax 254 829 3201 | info@hcs gc.com

As Co Founder and COO of HCS Inc., Carl Ballerino has been the integral piece of HCS that has given it its direction and
success over the years. Working in construction industry for more than 40 years Carl has overseen scores of projects. Carls
strong character and continuing commitment are a safe work environment and a quality project completed on time and
budget. Carl has extensive experience in Project Management, Scheduling, Operations Management, and Safety
Requirements.

HCS Work Experience:

 1989 Present COO: As a Co Founder Carl of course has a vested interest in the success of each and every project
overseen by not only himself, but other Project Managers and Superintendents. Since 2014 Carl has stepped back
from direct Project Management duties, to take a broader overview of the business needs. Carl still maintains an
in depth presence assisting other Project Mangagers as well as always playing a part in the Bidding and Estimation
of new work.

Previous Experience:

 1986 1989 Carl Ballerino Remodeling, Milford, NJ Owner: Specialized in custom kitchen and bath renovations
in the New York Metropolitan area.

 1984 1986 Christian Brothers Woodworks, Austin, TX General Manager: Responsible for all scheduling,
production, quality control, delivery and installation of products. Our facility produced and installed forty kitchens
per week for new home construction in the Austin metro area.

 1980 1984 Chrisitan Brothers Construction, Grand Junction, CO Superintendent: Starting as a laborer and
moving to Superintendent, Carl oversaw all foundation and concrete work for numerous apartments complexes,
commercial buildings, and custom homes. Eventually becoming a partner in the company and upholding the
responsibility of overseeing all field work.

Licenses & Certifications

 First Aide, CPA, AED
 CQC Certificate



MICHAEL �MIKE� BALLERINO
Cell 254 715 3264 | MikeB@hcs gc.com

HCS Inc. Commercial General Contractor
365 Wayside Dr., Waco, TX 76705 | Office 254 829 3200 | Fax 254 829 3201 | info@hcs gc.com

HCS WORK EXPERIENCE:
 2022 to Present: VP/Director, HCS Inc.
 2018 to 2022: Director of Construction, HCS Inc.
 2016 to 2018: Senior Project Manager, HCS Inc.
 2011 to 2015: Project Manager, HCS Inc.
 2006 to 2010: Superintendent, HCS Inc.

2023
 Acts Church Ph. 3 | $367,735 (Multi Year)
 AISD Clifton CDS (Career Development School) Various Upgrades Ph 2 (22CSP037) (22 0026) | $304,400
 Centex Aerospace New Hanger Building (7943KM) | $307,842 (Multi Year)
 Edgewood Housing Authority Site Modernization (Multiple Locations) (22156) | $85,767
 Waco ISD Child Nutrition Services Infrastructure REBID (21 1199) | $1,051,862 (Multi Year)

2022
 Acts Church Ph. 3 | $367,735 (Multi Year)
 AISD Gorzycki MS Critical Repairs (22CSP051) (22 0019) | $462,582
 Centex Aerospace New Hanger Building (7943KM) | $307,842 (Multi Year)
 City of Cedar Park Fire Station #2 Remodel (RFP 04 23 222 KR 013) | $498,200
 IDEA Public Schools Texas JOC Construction Services (1 JOC FCLTY 2022) | Multiple Projects (On Call)
 McLennan County MHMR Crisis Center ADA Renovations REBID (21 003) | $624,700
 St. Peters Church Office Renovation | $44,200
 Wellington Development Company Freedoms Path Permanent Supportive Housing Bldg. 19, 20, 21, 1A, 1B

(ES 20.034.01) (REBID) | $6,800,000
 Waco ISD Child Nutrition Services Infrastructure REBID (21 1199) | $1,051,862 (Multi Year)

2021
 Acts Church Interior Renovation Phase 2 | $280,527
 City of Brady Housing Authority Site Gas Piping Replacement (20156) | $335,300
 City of Waco ACT Emergency Generator (2020 027) | $102,600
 City of Waco Cameron Park Zoo New Hoofstock Barn (2021 020) REBID | $765,720
 McLennan Community College Learning Technology Center 3rd Floor Renovations (RBDR#20094) | $645,160
 Williamson Co Juvenile Justice Center RTU (T2795) | $1,843,503

2020
 Austin ISD 20 026 Walnut Creek ES Renovations | $737,000
 Copperas Cove ISD OR#1977.00 Copperas Cove HS 2020 HVAC & Roof Repl. | $2,400,000
 Waco ISD Cedar Ridge ES 2020 HVAC Renovations | $350,000

2019
 Austin ISD 18 0011 Jordan ES Renovations | $700,000



MICHAEL �MIKE� BALLERINO
Cell 254 715 3264 | MikeB@hcs gc.com

HCS Inc. Commercial General Contractor
365 Wayside Dr., Waco, TX 76705 | Office 254 829 3200 | Fax 254 829 3201 | info@hcs gc.com

2018
 Austin ISD 16 0003 WLLMS, Williams ES Renovations | $290,000.00
 Austin ISD 17 0001 CAMPB, Campbell ES HVAC and General Renovations | $614,000.00
 Austin ISD 17 0005 CAC, Carruth Administration Center Renovations | $176,900.00
 Austin ISD 17 0007 WIDEN, Widen ES Renovations | $328,950.00
 Austin ISD 17 0021 JOSLN, Joslin ES MEP, HVAC and Roofing Improvements | $2,900,000.00
 Lago Vista ISD Lago Vista ES & MS Electrical, Mechanical Renov. (914 17 0110) | $1,950,000.00

2017
 Acts Church Renovatios Waco TX | $610,000.00
 Austin ISD Mendez MA HVAC, Electrical MS Renovations | $738,300.00
 Austin ISD Galindo ES ADA Renovations | $279,000.00
 Austin ISD Small MS HVAC, Electrical and Plumbing Renovations | $1,263,200.00
 Austin ISD Travis Heights ES Renovations | $4,197,171.00
 Austin ISD Carruth Administrative Center Renovations | $46,050.00
 City of Waco IT and Emergency Management Renovations | $1,674,463.00
 City of Waco Police Department Demolition | $89,225.00
 Bureau of Land Management New Metal Bldg., Carrizo Plain National Monument | $135,750.00
 National Park Service Re Roof Restrooms at Pinnacles National Park| $73,800.00

2016
 Austin ISD Langford ES HVAC Renovation | August 2016 | $2,147,715.00
 Austin ISD Brown ES Renovations | August 2016 | $1,358,680.00
 Austin ISD Nelson Field Renovations | July 2016 | $1,016,045.00
 Austin ISD Anderson HS Renovations | September 2016 | $995,400.00
 Austin ISD Pleasant Hill ES & Annex Renovations | September 2016 | $715,040.00
 Austin ISD Webb MS Renovations | August 2016 | $624,085.00
 Bureau of Land Management Wyoming | Wild Horse Vehicle Warehouse Renovation | $68,950
 Bureau of Land Management Montrose CO | Replace, Repair Exterior Doors | $24,600
 City of Waco Library Parking Lot Expansion | $263,595
 Waco Housing Authority South Terrace, 1408 Benton Repairs | $42,900
 Waco Housing Authority South Terrace Electrical Systems Upgrade | $289,500
 Waco Housing Authority Raintree Apartments, End Stairs Rebuild | $39,350
 Waco Housing Authority Raintree Apartments Drainage Improvements | $24,200

2015
 Austin ISD O.Henry ES Retaining Wall, Concrete & Drainage Improvements | $90,000.00
 Austin ISD Oak Springs ES Replacement of HVAC System | $1,407,649
 Austin ISD Oak Springs ES Exterior and Interior Renovations | $185,000
 Austin ISD Mathews ES Exterior and Interior Renovations | $85,597
 Austin ISD Rosedale ES Interior and Exterior Renovation | $502,498



MICHAEL �MIKE� BALLERINO
Cell 254 715 3264 | MikeB@hcs gc.com

HCS Inc. Commercial General Contractor
365 Wayside Dr., Waco, TX 76705 | Office 254 829 3200 | Fax 254 829 3201 | info@hcs gc.com

2015 (cont.)
 Austin ISD Tony Burger Complex Dugout Concrete Demo, Site Work, Concrete | $64,000.00
 Austin ISD Webb MS Exterior and Interior Renovations | $452,466
 City of Waco River Walk Signage Information Signage, Excavation, Concrete, Masonry, Structural Steel |

$100,000.00
 City of Waco Sidewalk Imp. Demolition, Site work, Concrete sidewalk, Asphalt | $74,000.00
 Richland Mall Renovations Concrete Demo, Structural Steel, Concrete, CMU Masonry, ACT System |

$490,000.00
 Waco ISD Greater Waco Advanced Health Academy Interior and Exterior Renovation | $805,000

2014
 Austin ISD Anderson High School Wing renovations | $500,000.00
 City of Waco Cameron Park Road Reclamation | $950,000.00
 Georgetown Housing Authority Domestic Water System Upgrade | $70,000.00
 Goodfellow AFB Demolition, Sidewalk Repair, Seeding | $70,000.00
 Mansfield ISD RL Anderson Complex Gymnasium Demolition and Concrete Work | $359,840
 US Coast Guard Kodiak, AK Repair Concrete Seawall, Ramps for Boats | $97,000

2013
 Temple Housing Authority Apartment Upgrades | $245,000.00
 Travis County East Command Building | Foundation Stabilization | $117,000.00
 Waco Housing Authority Modernization Project | $ 535,000.00

2012
 Round Rock ISD Deer Park MS Addition |$1,750,000

2011
 Austin ISD Govalle HVAC Remodel | $582,000
 Waco Housing Authority 933 Apt. Remodel | $4,600,000
 Waco Housing Authority Addition | $1,010,450

2010
 Austin ISD Jordon, Ortega, Pecan Springs Removel | $800,000
 Texas Health and Human Services | $1,310,00
 Texas Machine & Tool | $1,925,000

2009
 WCID #17 Office Ground Up Addition | $750,000



MICHAEL �MIKE� BALLERINO
Cell 254 715 3264 | MikeB@hcs gc.com

HCS Inc. Commercial General Contractor
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2007
 Georgetown Community Montessori School | $800,000
 Williamson County Court House | $1,275,000

2006
 Austin ISD Walnut Creek ES | $1,310,000

EDUCATION:
 High School, Private, Austin, TX
 H.S. Education | Graduated 2001
 ACC 2002 General Studies

CERTIFICATIONS:
 OSHA Certificate, Rockhurst University Continuing Education Center
 First Aid, CPR & AED Certificates
 Haz Com Certificate
 EPA Lead/Mold Remediation Certificate
 US Army Corps Construction Quality Management Certificate

GENERAL COMPANY RESPONSIBILITIES INCLUDE:
 Operations Management
 Project Management
 Estimating
 Scheduling
 Project Budgets
 Safety Meeting PPE
 Site Specific Safety
 Haz Comp Training



ZACK PEARCE
C: 512 745 2561 | Zack@hcs gc.com

HCS Inc. Commercial General Contractor
365 Wayside Dr., Waco, TX 76705, Office 254 829 3200, Fax 254 829 3201, info@hcs gc.com

HCS Work Experience:
2022 to Present:

 Vice President of Operations, HCS Inc. Commercial General Contractor
 Project Manager at the following projects:

2023
 Choice Partners (Harris Co DOE) Minor Const (JOC IDIQ) (23016MR)
 Houston Galveston Area Coop (HGAC) IDIQ JOC (JC02 23)
 IDEA Public Schools Texas JOC Construction Services (1 JOC FCLTY 2022)
 Round Rock ISD Painting and Drywall Annual Contract (23 029)
 TxGLO VLB Renovations and Construction Services (IDIQ JOC) (RFP X0026550 SB)

2022
 AISD Districtwide Kitchen Hood Suppression System Replacements (21 0028) | $734,800
 AISD LASA Renovations (20 0006) | $3,288,100
 AISD Patton ES Critical Repairs (22CSP016) (21 0015) | $1,442,500

Previous Experience:
Austin ISD:

 2021 2022: Executive Director of Construction Management
 2016 2021: Director of Project Management

Sunland Group Inc.:
 2000 2016: Project Controls Manager

Accomplishments:
 More than two decades of experience as a Program Manager in the Construction Field.
 Instrumental in the planning, budgeting, passing, and execution of the $1.2 Billion Dollar Austin ISD 2017 Bond

Program.
 Served as Director for the execution of the $500 Million Dollar Austin ISD 2013 Bond Program.
 Project Controls Manager for Sunland Group Inc., providing program management services on numerous multi

million dollar projects for public/private sector projects including light rail, aviation, building, and heavy civil
projects.

 Experience as a Consultant, Contractor, Owners Representative, and Owner, provides a unique perspective and
ability to identify and creatively solve issues with the experience of managing projects from every angle.



DAVE DOWNING
C: 512 426 7764 | Dave@hcs gc.com

HCS Inc. Commercial General Contractor
365 Wayside Dr., Waco, TX 76705, Office 254 829 3200, Fax 254 829 3201, info@hcs gc.com

HCS Work Experience:
2022 to Present: Senior Project Manager, HCS Inc.

2023
 AISD Akins HS Various Improvements (22CSP025) (22 0023) | $3,219,900 (Multi Year)
 AISD Crockett HS Critical Repairs (22CSP018) (21 0024) | $3,636,355 (Multi Year)
 AISD Clifton CDS (Career Development School) Various Upgrades Ph 2 (22CSP037) (22 0026) |

$304,400 (Multi Year)
 AISD Gorzycki MS Critical Repairs (22CSP051) (22 0019) | $959,800 (Multi Year)
 AISD Sadler Bertha Means Academy Critical Repairs (22CSP019) (20 0032) | $959,800 (Multi Year)
 City of Sunset Valley Public Works Reception Area Renovation (RFB 06292022A) | $54,900 (Multi Year)
 Copperas Cove ISD District Wide HVAC Replacement 2023 (OR 2263.00) | $780,200

2022
 AISD Akins HS Various Improvements (22CSP025) (22 0023) | $3,219,900
 AISD Crockett HS Critical Repairs (22CSP018) (21 0024) | $3,636,355
 AISD Clifton CDS (Career Development School) Various Upgrades Ph 2 (22CSP037) (22 0026) |

$304,400
 AISD Gorzycki MS Critical Repairs (22CSP051) (22 0019) | $959,800
 AISD Sadler Bertha Means Academy Critical Repairs (22CSP019) (20 0032) | $959,800
 City of Sunset Valley Public Works Reception Area Renovation (RFB 06292022A) | $54,900

Previous Experience
 2017 2022: Dallas ISD Director of Planning & Design
 2010 2017: Austin ISD Supervisor of Campus Support
 2004 2010: Austin ISD Staff Architects and Project Manager
 2003 2003: Spencer Godfrey Architects Project Manager
 2001 2002: BigSky Interactive Senior Producer and VP Director of Development
 2000 2001: Digital Anvil Project Manager
 1998 2000: 3DO Company Producer
 1994 1998: Origin Systems Associate Producer and Producer
 1991 1993: Einhorn Yaffee Prescott PC CAD Systems Manager and LAN Manager
 1989 1991: Dean Tucker Shaw CAD Manager

Education and Other Information
 Bachelor of Architecture, Texas Tech University
 Registered Architect � State of Texas #18279
 17 years in Public Educational Facility Design & Construction
 Demonstrated effective team leadership and project management skills
 Excellent strategic program / project planning and tactical execution skills



ALLEN BARKER
C: 254 749 4086 | Allen@hcs gc.com

HCS Inc. Commercial General Contractor
365 Wayside Dr. Waco, TX. 76705 | O 254 829 3200 | F 254 829 3201 | info @hcs gc.com

HCS Work Experience:
2022 to Present: Superintendent, HCS Inc.

2023
 AISD Akins HS Various Improvements (22CSP025) | $3,073,700 (Multi Year)
 AISD Gorzycki MS Critical Repairs (22CSP051) | $462,582 (Multi Year)

2022
 AISD Akins HS Various Improvements (22CSP025) | $3,073,700 (Multi Year)
 AISD Gorzycki MS Critical Repairs (22CSP051) | $462,582 (Multi Year)

Past Work Experience:
 2018 2022 Superintendent Mazanec Construction Co. Inc., Waco, TX
 2016 2018 Superintendent Charles N. White
 2005 2016 Superintendent Vanguard Contractors LP, Temple, TX
 2003 2005 Superintendent WCI Texas, Waco, TX
 2000 2003 Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent Coffman Commercial Construction
 1998 2000 Assistant Superintendent Waco Construction Inc., Waco, TX
 1985 1998 Superintendent Pledger Construction Company, McGregor, TX

Past Project Experience:
 Academy ISD ES Renovations & Additions, Little River Academy, TX | $1,238,714 (CM)
 Academy ISD HS Science Room Addition, Little River Academy, TX | $2,634,367 (CM)
 Academy ISD New Intermediate School, Little River Academy, TX | $11,219,940 (CM)
 ACE AAFES III Corp. Shoppette Renovation & Fuel Improvement, Fort Hood, TX
 Baylor University Grand Teaff Plaza Floyd Casey Stadium, Waco, TX
 Baylor University Hart Patterson Track & Field Bldg., Waco, TX
 Blanco ISD Elementary School, Blanco, TX | $6,331,872 (CM)
 Central Texas College Warehouse Bldg., Killeen, TX | $1,111,000
 Central Texas College Welding Shop Renovations Bldg. 101, Killeen, TX | $742,000
 City of Killeen Killeen Transfer Station, Killeen, TX | $6,999,000
 City of Temple Municipal Bldg., Temple, TX | $296,632 (CM)
 Elgin ISD Secured Vestibule Renovations, Elgin, TX | $183,000
 Farley Street Baptist Church, Waxahachie, TX $4,646,036
 Greene Family Camp Renovations, Bruceville, TX | $1,311,815
 Groesbeck ISD HS Drainage Courtyard, Groesbeck, TX | $451,676
 Groesbeck ISD HS Field House, Groesbeck, TX | $2,126,323 (CM)
 Groesbeck ISD HS Stadium & Gymnasium Imp., Groesbeck, TX | $486,646 (CM)
 Groesbeck ISD MS Science Lab, Groesbeck, TX | $386,080
 Groesbeck ISD New ES, Groesbeck, TX | $16,014,676



ALLEN BARKER
C: 254 749 4086 | Allen@hcs gc.com

HCS Inc. Commercial General Contractor
365 Wayside Dr. Waco, TX. 76705 | O 254 829 3200 | F 254 829 3201 | info @hcs gc.com

Past Project Experience (cont.):
 McGregor ISD New Field House, McGregor, TX
 Midway ISD Stadium Renovation Pases 1, 2, and 3, Waco, TX
 Troy ISD Troy ES Additions & Renvoations, Troy, TX | $2,243,303
 Waco ISD West ES, Waco, TX

Educations & Certifications
Texas State Technical Institution General Education Development
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS� REVIEW REPORT 
 
 To Shareholders and Management of 

HCS Inc. Commercial General Contractor 
Waco, TX  76705 
 

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of HCS Inc. Commercial 
General Contractor (an S corporation), which comprise the balance sheet as of 
December 31, 2021, and the related statements of income, changes in shareholder�s 
equity and cash flows � indirect method for the year then ended, and the related notes 
to the financial statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures 
to management�s financial data and making inquiries of company management. A 
review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the 
expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. 

Management�s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error. 

Accountants� Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements 
on Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and 
Review Services Committee of the AICPA. Those standards require us to perform 
procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware 
of any material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them 
to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America.  We believe that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable 
basis for our conclusion. 

We are required to be independent of HCS Inc. Commercial General Contractor and 
to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements related to our review. 
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Accountants� Conclusion 

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be 
made to the accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Supplementary Information 

The accompanying supplementary information included in Schedule I is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from, and relates directly to, the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements. The supplementary information has been subjected 
to the review procedures applied in our review of the basic financial statements.  We 
are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the 
supplementary information.  We have not audited the supplementary information and 
do not express an opinion on such information. 

 

 
PATTILLO, BROWN & HILL, L.L.P. 

 Waco, Texas 
July 11, 2022 



CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 1,538,656$        
Contracts receivable - trade 2,178,678
Due from related party 643,286
Prepaid insurance 22,361
Contract assets, including conditional retainage 947,304             

 Total Current Assets 5,330,285          
  

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Construction equipment 1,150,730
Automobiles 813,378
Office furniture & equipment 68,560
Office building 479,834
Land 171,428
Less:  Accumulated depreciation (1,323,773)

Total Property, Plant and Equipment 1,360,157          
  

OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS
Net pension asset 101,597

Total Other Noncurrent Assets 101,597             
  

Total Assets 6,792,039$        

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 2,633,677$        
Accrued wages 40,726               
Accrued losses on contracts in progress 27,874               
Payroll liabilities 25,168               
Credit card payable 65,215               
Retirement plan payable 69,557               
Line of credit 60,000               
Current portion of long term debt 128,600             
Contract liabilities, net of conditional retainage 2,022,335          
 Total Current Liabilities 5,073,152          

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Notes payable, net current portion 522,827

Total Long Term Liabilities 522,827

Total Liabilities 5,595,979          
EQUITY

Common stock, $1 par value, 1,000 shares authorized, issued & outstanding 1,000
Retained earnings 1,195,060          

Total Equity 1,196,060          

Total Liabilities and Equity 6,792,039$        

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

ASSETS

HCS Inc. Commercial General Contractor 
Balance Sheet

Unaudited
December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Notes and Independent Accountants' Review Report
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REVENUE 29,431,955$      

COSTS OF REVENUES
Cost of goods sold 27,584,618        
Provision for losses on contracts in progress 27,874               

Total Cost of Revenue 27,612,492

GROSS PROFIT 1,819,463          

OPERATING EXPENSES
Officers' salary 289,830             
Wages 429,494             
Advertising 6,794                 
Automobile 294,450             
Bank service charges 841                    
Depreciation 155,374             
Donations 4,500                 
Dues & subscriptions 16,431               
Employee benefits - 401(k) 67,617               
Insurance 62,042               
Miscellaneous 3,472                 
Office supplies 88,729               

                 Pension plan service costs 264,050             
Postage and delivery 3,518                 
Professional fees 47,676               
Rent 21,550               
Repairs & maintenance 14,109               
Taxes

Franchise 18,370               
Payroll 58,362               
Property 13,857               
State 1,385                 

Telephone 37,312               
Travel 60,928               
Utilities 17,474               

Total Operating Expenses 1,978,165          

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS (158,702)           

OTHER INCOME/EXPENSE
Interest income 69                      

        Interest expense (29,591)             
Pension plan interest cost (54,913)             
Gain (loss) on pension plan 326,532             

      Gain (loss) on sale of assets 71,914               
                 Other income (expense) 246,500             

Total Other Income (Expense) 560,511             

NET INCOME 401,809$           

HCS Inc. Commercial General Contractor 

Statement of Income
Unaudited

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Notes and Independent Accountants' Review Report
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Common Retained 
Stock Earnings TOTAL

Balance, January 1, 2021 1,000$               1,669,668$        1,670,668$        

Net Income (Loss) -                401,809          401,809          

Contributions -                70,972            70,972            

Distributions -                947,389)(          947,389)(          

Balance, December 31, 2021 1,000$               1,195,060$        1,196,060$        

HCS Inc. Commercial General Contractor 

Statement Of Changes In Shareholder's Equity

Unaudited

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Notes and Independent Accountants' Review Report
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Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
  Net Income (Loss) 401,809$        
  Adjustments to reconcile net income to 
   net cash:

Depreciation expense 259,647          
(Gain) loss on sale of assets (71,914)           
(Increase) decrease in contracts receivable (1,725,434)      
(Increase) decrease in retainage receivable 842,138          
(Increase) decrease in due from related party (200,000)         
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 10,062            
(Increase) decrease in contract assets (100,451)         
Increase (decrease) in net pension asset (7,569)             
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 1,354,871       
Increase (decrease) in retainage payable (940,246)         
Increase (decrease) in accrued wages 17,441            
Increase (decrease) in accrued losses on contracts in progress 27,874            
Increase (decrease) in payroll liabilities 21,876            
Increase (decrease) in credit card payable 20,539            
Increase (decrease) in retirement plan payable (93,865)           
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities 1,612,589       

       Total adjustments 1,032,558       

  Net Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 1,434,367       

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Investing Activities:
   Purchase of fixed assets (335,338)         
   Proceeds from sale of assets 73,500            

   Net Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (261,838)         

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Financing Activities:
Payments on long-term debt (193,612)         
Proceeds from line of credit, net (35,147)           
Forgiveness of paychdck (246,500)         
Contributions 70,972            
Distributions paid (947,389)         

    Net Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Financing Activities (1,351,676)      

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (179,147)         

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of Period 1,717,803       

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of Period 1,538,656$     

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
   Cash Payments for:
            Interest 29,591$          

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Financing Activities:
Purchase of fixed assets (828,504)$       
Loan proceeds 493,166          

            Net Cash Paid for Fixed Assets (335,338)$       

HCS Inc. Commercial General Contractor 
Statement of Cash Flows - Indirect Method

Unaudited
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Notes and Independent Accountants' Review Report
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HCS Inc. Commercial General Contractor 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2021 
 

See Independent Accountants� Review Report 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
This summary of significant accounting policies of HCS Inc. General Contractor (the 
Company) is presented to assist in understanding the Company's financial statements. 
The financial statements and notes are representations of the Company's 
management who is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting 
policies conform to generally accepted accounting principles and have been 
consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements. 

 
Nature of Operations 
 
The Company was incorporated in the state of Texas in 1997 and is engaged in the 
installation and related service of commercial and residential buildings. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid 
investments with maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 
 
Contracts Receivable 
 
Contracts receivable are recorded on construction contracts and include billed and 
unbilled amounts for services provided to customers for which the Company has an 
unconditional right to payment.  Biled and unbilled amounts for which payment is 
contingent on anything other than the passage of time are included in contract assets 
and contract liabilities on a net basis at the individual contract level. 
 
Retainage for which the Company has an unconditional right to payment that is only 
subject to the passage of time is included in contracts receivable and amounted to $0 
at December 31, 2021.  Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts 
through a charge to earnings and a credit to a valuation allowance based on its 
assessment of the current status of individual accounts.  Balances still outstanding after 
management has used reasonable collections efforts are written off through a charge 
to the valuation allowance and a credit to contracts receivable.  The Company 
considers all receivables to be fully collectible; accordingly, no allowance for doubtful 
accounts is required. 
 
Plant, Property and Equipment 
 
Plant, property and equipment are carried at cost and include expenditures for 
improvements and betterments which substantially increase the useful lives of existing 
plant and equipment.  Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred unless it 
significantly prolongs the useful life of the asset.  When properties are retired or 
otherwise disposed of, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed 
from the respective accounts and any profit or loss is credited or charged to income. 
 



See Independent Accountants� Review Report 
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Depreciation of property and equipment is provided using the straight-line method 
over their estimated useful lives. 
 
Depreciation expense for property and equipment is included in costs of goods sold 
and operating expenses. 
 
Revenue and Cost Recognition 
 
Contract costs include all direct material, subcontractors and direct labor costs and 
those indirect costs related to contract performance, such as indirect labor, supplies, 
tools, and repairs.  Other selling, general, and administrative costs are charged to 
expense as incurred.  Provisions for estimated losses on uncompleted contracts are 
made in the period in which such losses are determined. Changes in job performance, 
job conditions, and estimated profitability, including those arising from contract penalty 
provisions, and final contract settlements may result in revisions to costs and income, 
which are recognized in the period in which the revisions are determined.  Profit 
incentives or contract costs attributable to claims are included in income during the 
period when realization is probable, and the amounts can be reliably estimated.  
 
The asset, �Contract Assets� represents revenues recognized in excess of amounts 
billed.  The liability, �Contract Liabilities,� represents billings in excess of revenues 
recognized. 
 
Please refer to footnote 14 for expanded disclosures related to revenue from contracts 
with customers.  
 
Compensated Absences 
 
Employees of the Company are entitled to paid vacations depending on job 
classification, length of service and other factors.  Vacations are taken in the year 
earned.  The Company does not allow employees to carryover unused vacation time 
to the next year.  Therefore, the Company has not accrued any liability for 
compensated absences. 
 
Warranty 
 
The Company does not have a company-wide warranty clause in place as of 
December 31, 2021, but rather provides individual warranties on a per job basis.  The 
Company maintains an estimated warranty reserve based on past experience and costs 
incurred.  Warranty work performed for the period ended December 31, 2021 was $0. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual amounts could 
differ from these estimates. Significant estimates to the financial statements include 
useful lives of property and equipment, allowance for doubtful accounts, liability for 
pension benefits and estimated earnings on contracts in progress.   



See Independent Accountants� Review Report 
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Advertising 

The Company expenses advertising as incurred and had $6,794 in advertising expense 
for the period ended December 31, 2021. 

 
Income Taxes 
 
The Company has elected to be taxed under the provisions of Subchapter S of the 
Internal Revenue Code for the year beginning September 18, 1997.  Under those tax 
provisions the Company generally does not pay federal corporate income taxes on its 
taxable income.  Instead, the stockholder is liable for individual income taxes on his 
share of the Company�s taxable income for federal tax purposes.  Therefore, no 
provision or liability for federal or state income taxes has been included in the financial 
statements.  
 
The Company believes that it has appropriate support for any tax positions taken, and 
as such, does not have any uncertain tax positions that are material to the financial 
statements.  The Corporations federal and state tax returns are subject to examination 
by the IRS, generally for three years after they were filed and by the Texas State 
Comptroller generally for four years after they were filed.  The Company remains 
subject to examination by the IRS for years ending after December 31, 2018 and by the 
Texas State Comptroller for years ending after December 31, 2017. 
  
Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
 
The Company�s financial instruments consist primarily of cash, receivables, accounts 
payable and debt.  The carrying amounts of cash, receivables and accounts payable 
approximates fair value due to the short maturity of these financial instruments.  The 
carrying value of short and long-term debts approximates fair value because those 
financial instruments bear interest at rates that approximate current market rates for 
loans with similar maturities and credit quality.   
 

2. Contracts Receivable 
 

Contracts receivable at December 31, 2021 are composed of the following:  
 

Billed:
Completed contracts 249,646$     
Uncompleted contracts 1,929,032
Retainage -          

Unbilled -          

Total receivables 2,178,678 

Less allowance for doubtful accounts -          

Contracts receivable, net 2,178,678$  
 

 



See Independent Accountants� Review Report 
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Contracts receivable at December 31, 2021 consists of the following aged balances: 
 

Current 2,137,840$  
Over 30 days 40,838      
Retainage -          

Total 2,178,678$  

 
The opening and closing balances of receivables from contracts with customers and 
current and long-term contract assets and contract liabilities are as follows: 

 
Beginning 

of Year End of Year
Receivables from contracts with customers, net 1,295,382$    2,178,678$    
Contract assets (current) 846,853      947,304      
Contract assets (long-term) -           -           
Contract liabilities (current) 409,746      2,022,335   
Contract liabilities (long-term) -           -            

 
3. Backlog 
  

The following schedule represents the amount of revenue the Company expects to realize 
from work to be performed on uncompleted projects as of December 31, 2021 and from 
contractual agreements on which work has not yet begun. 
 

Backlog, January 1, 2021 14,613,894$   
New contracts and contract adjustments 43,522,665 

58,136,559  
Less contract revenue earned 29,431,955)(  

Backlog, December 31, 2021 28,704,604$   

 
4. Plant, Property and Equipment 

 
The following summary discloses plant, property and equipment per major category of 
property and the estimated lives for the period ended December 31, 2021: 
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Estimated Lives

Construction Equipment 1,150,730$  5-10 years
Automobiles 813,378    5 years
Office Funiture & Equipment 68,560      7 years
Office Building 479,834    39 years
Land 171,428

2,683,930
Less Accumulated Depreciation 1,323,773)(

Total Fixed Assets 1,360,157$
 

 
Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2021 was $259,647. 
 

5. Forgivable Loans Received Under the Small Business Administration Paycheck Protection 
Program 
 
In response to the coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak in 2020, the U.S. Federal Government 
enacted the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act that, among other 
economic stimulus measures, established the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) to 
provide small business loans.  On April 17, 2020, the Company obtained an unsecured 
PPP loan for $246,500 set to mature on April 17, 2022 bearing interest at a fixed annual 
rate of 1%, with the first six months of interest deferred.  The Company used all of the 
proceeds from the note for qualifying expenses and thus received forgiveness of the loan 
balance plus accrued interest on January 6, 2021, at which time the Company 
recognized a gain on forgiveness of the loan.   

 
6. Note Payable � Line of Credit 

 
The Company has a revolving line of credit with American Bank in the amount of 
$650,000 with an interest rate of 3.25% maturing June 29, 2022, secured by accounts 
receivable.  As of December 31, 2021, the outstanding balance was $60,000. 
 
The Company has an unsecured revolving line of credit utilizing a credit card with Wells 
Fargo in the amount of $150,000, with an interest rate of 8.75%.  There are no specified 
terms for this line of credit.  At December 31, 2021, the outstanding balance was $0.   
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7. Long �Term Debts 
 
The Company�s long-term debt consists of the following: 
 

3,663$      

19,064   

20,281   

27,135   

4,310     

14,256   

26,336   

46,606   

36,642   

19,074   

45,745   

Note payable to CAT Financial, due in monthly installments of $1,200, 

which includes interest at an annual rate of 6.85% through April 2024, 

when the balance is due in full, secured by a 308 Exavator

Note payable to GM Financial, due in monthly installments of $506, 

which includes interest at an annual rate of 6.99% through May 2025, 

when the balance is due in full, secured by a 2019 Chevy

Note payable to GM Financial, due in monthly installments of $613, 

which includes interest at an annual rate of 6.99% through August 

2025, when the balance is due in full, secured by a 2019 Chevy

Note payable to Sun Trust, due in monthly installments of $877, which 

includes interest at an annual rate of 3.69% through December 2022, 

when the balance is due in full, secured by a 2017 Chevy

Note payable to Ally, due in monthly installments of $625, which 

includes interest at an annual rate of 6.54% through June 2026, when 

the balance is due in full, secured by a 2019 Chevy

Note payable to GM Financial, due in monthly installments of $1,033, 

which includes interest at an annual rate of 6.25% through 

September 2023, when the balance is due in full, secured by a 2018 

Note payable to Cat Financial, due in monthly installments of $2,207, 

which includes interest at an annual rate of 5.50% through December 

2022, when the balance is due in full, secured by a Cat 289D

Note payable to Chase Auto, due in monthly installments of $940, 

which includes interest at an annual rate of 4.54% through February 

2025, when the balance is due in full, secured by a 2019 Dodge

Note payable to Chase Auto, due in monthly installments of $1,076, 

which includes interest at an annual rate of 4.99% through April 2026, 

when the balance is due in full, secured by a 2020 Ford

Note payable to Ally, due in monthly installments of $881, which 

includes interest at an annual rate of 6.44% through August 2026, 

when the balance is due in full, secured by a 2020 Dodge

Note payable to GM Financial, due in monthly installments of $767, 

which includes interest at an annual rate of 5.99% through April 2026, 

when the balance is due in full, secured by a 2020 Chevy
 



See Independent Accountants� Review Report 
13 

25,398   

362,917 

651,427 

Less current maturities 128,600)( 

522,827$  

Note payable to American Bank, due in monthly installments of $748, 

which includes interest at an annual rate of 5.50% through December 

2024, when the balance is due in full, secured by a 2014 Ford

Note payable to American Bank, due in monthly installments of 

$2,810, which includes interest at an annual rate of 4.25% through 

June 2036, when the balance is due in full, secured by real estate

 
Future scheduled maturities of long-term debt are as follows: 
 

Years ending December 31,
2022 128,600$         
2023 103,456        
2024 70,731          
2025 51,244          
2026 31,107          

Thereafter 266,289        

651,427$         

 
 

8. Lease Commitments 
 

The Company rented office space in Georgetown, Texas under a month-to-month 
lease.  The lease called for a monthly rent of $2,000.  The lease terminated in June 2021.  
Total rental expense under the lease for the year ended December 31, 2021 was 
$10,000. 
 
The Company leases various lots on an as needed basis for storage.  Total rental 
expense under these agreements for the year ended December 21, 2021 was $11,550. 

 
9. Related Party Transactions 
 

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company advanced funds to its 
stockholders.  The advances are non-interest bearing and have no formal repayment 
terms.  At December 31, 2021, advances to stockholders totaled $643,286. 
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10. Concentrations of Credit Risk 
 

The Company�s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk 
consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents.  The Company deposits its cash with high 
credit quality institutions.  However, at times, such investments may be in excess of FDIC 
Insurance limits.  The cash balances in the financial institution are insured up to $250,000 
at each institution.  At December 31, 2021, the Company�s uninsured cash balances 
were $1,056,048. 
 
The Company�s customers are primarily located in Texas and therefore an unforeseen 
change in general economic condition in Texas, may impact the Company�s business 
and its ability to generate sufficient operating income.  The Company extends credit to 
its customers in the ordinary course of its business.   
 
Approximately 90% of the Company�s revenue was derived from six customers for the 
year ending December 31, 2021.  Approximately 0% of the Company�s revenue was 
derived from the federal government, of which $0 was included in accounts receivable 
at year end.  As of December 31, 2021, approximately 89% of the receivables consist of 
amounts due from six major customers. 
 
Twenty-six major suppliers accounted for approximately 65% of total purchases for the 
year ended December 31, 2021.  As of December 31, 2021, approximately 65% of the 
payables consist of amounts due to nineteen vendors.   
 

11. Defined Contribution Plan 
 

During 2017, the Company established a defined contribution 401(k) profit sharing plan.  
Participation in this plan is available to substantially all employees upon completing 
one year of service.  The plan features include salary deferrals, 3% safe harbor 
contributions, and profit-sharing contributions. The Company�s profit-sharing 
contributions for the year amounted to $69,557.   

 
12. Defined Benefit Plan 

 
The Company sponsors a defined benefit cash balance pension plan covering 
substantially all of its employees. The benefits are based on a hypothetical account 
that is maintained for each participant in which pay credits are credited to the 
participant�s account for the benefit of the individual.  The Company's funding policy is 
to make the minimum annual contribution required by applicable regulations. 
Contributions are intended to provide not only for benefits attributed to service to date 
but also for those expected to be earned in the future. Expected company 
contributions in 2022 are $201,861. 
 
 
 
 



See Independent Accountants� Review Report 
15 

The following tables set forth further information about the Company's defined benefit 
pension plan as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021: 

Obligations and Funded Status

Benefit obligation 1,414,166)$(        
Plan assets at fair value 1,515,763        

Funded status 101,597$            

Accumulated benefit obligation 1,414,166$         

Employer contributions -                 
Plan participant contributions -                 

Benefits paid -                 
 
Amounts recognized in the statement of financial position consist of: 
 

Current liabilities (assets) -$                  
Noncurrent liabilities (assets) 101,597)(            

 
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income consist of: 
 

Net loss (gain) -$                  
Prior serv ice cost (credit) -                

-$                 
 

 
Net periodic benefit cost recognized in pension plan service costs, pension interest cost 
and gain (loss) on pension plan: 

 
Net periodic pension cost 247,426$             

 
We account for this plan under the immediate recognition method, under which 
actuarial gains and losses are recognized in our Statement of Income in the year in 
which the gains and losses occur rather than deferring them into Other Comprehensive 
Income (Loss) and amortizing them over future periods.  These amounts do not reflect 
current compensation costs and are recorded outside of Income From Operations, 
within Other Income (Loss) on our Statement of Income.  During 2021, we recognized a 
gain of $326,532. 
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The following assumptions were used in accounting for the plan: 
 
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 
31, 2021: 
 

WA Assumptions to determine benefit obligations:

Dicount rate 5.00%
Rate of compensation increase 0.00%

 
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for year 
ended December 31, 2021: 
 

WA Assumptions to determine net periodic benefit cost:

Dicount rate 5.00%
Expected long term rate of return 6.00%
Rate of compensation increase 0.00%

 
The Company's overall investment strategy is to provide both security and long-term 
stability with moderate growth commensurate with the anticipated retirement dates of 
participants.  Investments, other than �fixed-dollar� investments, should be included 
among the plan�s investments to prevent erosion by inflation.  However, investments 
should be sufficiently liquid to enable the plan, on short notice, to make some 
distributions in the event of the death or disability of a participant.  The Company�s 
investment policy does not contain target allocation ranges.  Instead, funds are to be 
invested without distinction between principal and income and in such securities or 
property, real or personal, wherever situated, as the Trustee shall deem advisable, 
including, but not limited to stocks, common or preferred, open-end or closed-end 
mutual funds, bonds and other evidences of indebtedness or ownership, and real 
estate or any interest therein.  The objective is to ensure assets are invested with the 
intent to protect pension plan assets so that such assets are preserved for the provision 
of benefits to participants and their beneficiaries and such long-term growth as may 
maximize the amounts available to provide such benefits without undue risk.   
 
The following table set forth the Company's pension plan assets measured at fair value 
on a recurring basis at December 31, 2021. These assets have been categorized 
according to the three-level fair value hierarchy established by the FASB which 
prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value. Level 1 is based on quoted prices for 
the asset in active markets. Level 2 is based on inputs that are observable other than 
quoted market prices in active markets, such as quoted prices for the asset in inactive 
markets or quoted prices for similar assets. Level 3 is based on unobservable inputs that 
market participants would use in pricing the asset. 
 
 



See Independent Accountants� Review Report 
17 

The fair value of the Company�s pension plan assets at December 31, 2021, by asset 
category are as follows: 

Total

Quoted 
Prices in 
Active 

Markets 
(Level 1)

Significant 
Observable 

Inputs    
(Level 2)

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs    
(Level 3)

Equities 983,928$     983,928$     -$             -$                
Exchange traded funds 205,188    205,188    -            -               
Real estate income trust 183,568    183,568    -            -               
Cash deposits 143,079    143,079    - -               

1,515,763$  1,515,763$  -$             -$                

Pension Plan Assets
Fair Value Measurements at

December 31, 2021

 
 
No plan assets are expected to be returned to the Company during 2021. 
 
The following benefits are expected to be paid: 
 

Years ending December 31,
2022 1,000$             
2023 1,210,000     
2024 317,000        
2025 1,000            
2026 4,000            

2026-2031 10,000          

1,543,000$      
 

 
13. Surety Bond 

 
The Company, as conditions for entering into some construction contracts, had 
outstanding surety bonds as of December 31, 2021. 
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14. Recognition of Revenue 
 

The Company earns revenue from general commercial construction projects where the 
Company typically provides general contracting, design-build contracting, and 
construction manager to their clients.  The Company has the capability to execute a 
project from inception to completion which includes design build, data analysis and total 
commercial construction capabilities.  
 
All revenue streams for the Company discussed above are within the scope of and 
accounted for under ASC 606. ASC 606 requires revenue to be recognized when the 
Company satisfies the related performance obligations by transferring to the customer a 
good or service through a 5-step process:  
 

1) Identify the contract with the customer,  
2) Identify the associated performance obligations,  
3) Determine the transaction price,  
4) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations, and  
5) Recognize revenue when the performance obligations have been satisfied and 
the good or service has been transferred.  
 

For general commercial construction, revenue is satisfied over time � primarily a year or 
less.  Revenues are recognized using the input method and based upon actual costs 
incurred relative to total estimated contract costs to determine, as a percentage, our 
progress toward contract completion.  Costs incurred that do not contribute to satisfying 
our performance obligations are excluded from our cost input calculation as these 
amounts are not reflective of our transferring control to the customer.  We believe the 
cost-based input method is the most faithful depiction of our performance because it 
directly measures the value of the services transferred to the customer.   
 
The Company�s source materials are construction related and determined on a job by 
job basis, if the market prices increase and/or resources become scarce it could impact 
the Company�s ability to bid on jobs or affect the timing of jobs.  Other general 
economic factors that could impact the Company are inflation, obsolescence and 
interest rates.  
 
Contracts are often modified through change orders to account for changes in scope 
and price of goods and services the Company is providing. Although the Company 
evaluates each change order to determine whether such modifications create a 
separate performance obligation, the majority of change orders are for goods or 
services that are not distinct within the context of the original contract and therefore not 
treated as separate performance obligations.  
 
Revisions in estimated contract profits are made in the year in which circumstances 
requiring the revision become known.  During 2021, supply chain issues, theft issues and 
an increase in the price of materials, equipment and labor caused material additional 
costs for one job.  Management estimates the impact of these issues will reduce these 
contracts gross profit by $171,031.  The change in estimate reduced 2021 net income by 
$274,163 of which $9,057 was not a result of performance in the current period.  
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Revenues on uninstalled materials are recognized when control is transferred to the 
customer, which for us does not necessarily equate to when the cost is incurred. Under 
limited circumstance (e.g., transfer of control occurs significantly before we provide 
services, the cost of the material is significant), we recognize revenue, but no profit, on 
certain uninstalled third-party materials when the cost is incurred. 
 
The Company generally provides limited warranties for work performed under its 
construction contracts. The warranty periods typically extend for a limited duration 
following substantial completion of the Company�s work on a project. Historically, 
warranty claims have not resulted in material costs incurred.  
 
The Company does not have any significant financing components related to contracts 
satisfied over time as payment is typically received at or shortly after completion of the 
contract.  
 
The amounts included within contract assets and contract liabilities are related to the 
company�s long-term construction contracts.  Retainage for which the Company has an 
unconditional right to payment that is only subject to the passage of time is classified as 
contracts receivable.  Retainage subject to conditions other than the passage of time 
are included in contract assets and contract liabilities on a net basis at the individual 
contract level. 
 
Contract assets represent revenues recognized in excess of amounts paid or payable 
(contract receivable) to the Company on uncompleted contract.  Contract assets 
include unbilled amounts typically resulting from sales under contracts when 
percentage-of-completion method of revenue recognition is utilized, and revenue 
recognized exceeds the amount billed to the customer.  Contract liabilities represent the 
Company�s obligation to perform on uncompleted contracts with customers for which 
the Company has received payment or for which contracts receivable are outstanding.   
 
The following table provides information about contract assets and contract liabilities 
from contracts with customers as of December 31, 2021.  
 

Contract Assets

505,700$     

441,604    

Total contract assets 947,304$     

Revenue recognized in excesss of amounts paid or payable 
(contracts receivable) to the Company on uncompleted 
contracts (contract asset), excluding retainage

Retainge included in contract assets due to being conditional 
on something other than solely passage of time
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Contract Liabilities

1,889,592$  

132,743    

Total contract liabilities 2,022,335$  

Payments received or receivable (contracts receivable) in 
excess of revenue recognized on uncompleted contracts 
(contract liability), excluding retainage

Retainage included in contract liabilities due to being 
conditional on something other than solely passage of time

 
Costs incurred on uncompleted contracts 23,433,370$   
Estimated earnings 1,205,571    

24,638,941  
Less: billings to date 26,022,833)(  

Net (overbillings) underbillings 1,383,892)$(    
 

 

Contract assets, excluding retainage plus 
unbilled receivables 505,700$        

Contract liabilities, excluding retainage 1,889,592)(    

Net (overbillings) underbillings 1,383,892)$(    
 

 
15. Subsequent Events 

 
As of June 30, 2022, $925,00 was deposited into the Company bank account by the 
shareholders as repayment of the shareholder receivable, with the remaining being an 
additional contribution to the Company. 
 
Management has evaluated subsequent events through July 11, 2022, the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 
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06/06/2022

Bailey Insurance and Risk Management

1201 Washington Ave.

P.O. Box 298

Waco TX 76701

Janie Smiley

(254) 753-5317 (254) 753-1132

janie@baileyinsurance.com

HCS Inc. Commercial General Contractor

365 Wayside Drive

Waco TX 76705

AMCO Insurance Company- Rated A+ by AMBEST 19100

All America Insurance Co.-Rated A by AMBEST 20222

Continental Insurance Co.- Rated A by AMBESt 35289

Texas Mutual Insurance- Rated A by AMBest 22945

CL2252810252

A ACP3110012421 04/06/2022 04/06/2023

1,000,000

100,000

10,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

B BAP 9914381 04/06/2022 04/06/2023

1,000,000

C

10,000

CUE 7014857629 04/06/2022 04/06/2023

5,000,000

5,000,000

D N 0001144851 05/26/2022 05/26/2023
1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

Sample Certificate For Information & Bid Purposes

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HCS Inc.  Commercial General Contractor 
365 Wayside Dr. Waco TX 76705 | Office 254.829.3200 | Fax 254.829.3201 | info@hcs-gc.com 

04. General Terms and Conditions
a. Certificate of Independent Price Determination
b. Texas Workers Compensation
c. Section 3 Employment Opportunities Clause
d. City of Killeen HUB HUR Report
e. HCS Inc. HUB Utilization Report
f. HUB Subcontracting Form
g. Affirmative Action Plan
h. Debarment Certification
i. Appendix A City of Killeen General Terms and Conditions
j. Conflict of Interest (CIQ)
k. Local Government Officer Conflicts Disclosure
l. Certificate of Corporate Resolution
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Section 007306 

Bid Proposal General Terms and Conditions 

CERTIFICATE OF INDEPENDENT PRICE DETERMINATION

BID NUMBER: 23- 7 

PROJECT: Killeen Community Center & Senior Center Expansion and Renovation 

The bidder certifies that: 

(a)(1) The prices in this bid have been arrived at independently, without, for the purpose of restricting competition, any 
consultation, communication, or agreement with any other bidder or competitor relating to (i) those prices, (ii) the intention 
to submit a bid, or (iii) the methods or factors used to calculate the prices offered; 

(2) The prices in this bid have not been and will not be knowingly disclosed by the bidder, directly or indirectly, to any
other bidder or competitor before bid opening (in the case of a sealed bid solicitation) or contract award (in the case of a
competitive proposal solicitation) unless otherwise required by law; and

(3) No attempt has been made or will be made by the bidder to induce any other concern to submit or not to submit a bid for
the purpose of restricting competition.

Each signature on the bid is considered to be a certification by the signatory that the signatory- 

(b)(1) Is the person in the bidder's organization responsible for determining the prices being offered in this bid or proposal, 
and that the signatory has not participated and will not participate in any action contrary to subparagraphs (a)(l) through 
(a)(3) above; or 

(2)(i) Has been authorized, in writing, to act as agent for the following principals in certifying that those principals have not 
participated, and will not participate in any action contrary to subparagraphs (a)(l) through (a)(3) above. 

Name of Person/ Principal Determining 
Prices in Bid

Position of Person/Principal in Organization 

[insert full name of person(s)/principals in the bidder's organization responsible for determining the prices offered in this 
bid or proposal, and the title of his or her position in the bidder's organization] 

(ii) As an authorized agent, does certify that the principals named in (b)(2)(i) above have not participated, and will not
participate, in any action contrary to subparagraphs (a)(1) through (a)(3) above; and

(iii) As an agent, has not personally participated, and will not participate in any action contrary to subparagraphs (a)(1)
through (a)(3) above.
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____________________________________________________________________________________________

SIGNATURE       Date: 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

PRINTED NAME & TITLE 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

FIRM 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

ADDRESS        CITY, STATE, ZIP 
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TEXAS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION 

RULE  28 TAC § 110.110 

Article.  Workers' Compensation Insurance Coverage. 

A. Definitions:

Certificate of coverage ("certificate") - A copy of a certificate of insurance, a certificate of authority to self-insure issued by 
the commission, or a coverage agreement (TWCC-81, TWCC-82, TWCC-83, or TWCC-84), showing statutory workers' 
compensation insurance coverage for the person's or entity's employees providing services on a project, for the duration of 
the project. 

Duration of the project - includes the time from the beginning of the work on the project until the contractor's/person's work 
on the project has been completed and accepted by the governmental entity. 

Persons providing services on the project ("subcontractor" in § 406.096) - includes all persons or entities performing all or 
part of the services the contractor has undertaken to perform the project, regardless of whether that person contracted 
directly with the contractor and regardless of whether that person has employees.  This includes, without limitation, 
independent contractors, subcontractors, leasing companies, motor carriers, owner-operators, employees of any such entity, 
or employees of any entity which furnishes persons to provide services on the project.  "Services" include, without 
limitation, providing, hauling, or delivering equipment or materials, or providing labor, transportation, or other service 
related to a project.  "Services" does not include activities unrelated to the project, such as food/beverage vendors, office 
supply deliveries, and delivery of portable toilets. 

B. The contractor shall provide coverage, based on properly reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts and
filing of all coverage agreements, which meets the statutory requirements of Texas Labor Code, Section 401.011(44) for al
employees of the contractor providing services on the project, for the duration of the project.

C. The contractor must provide a certificate of coverage to the governmental entity prior to being awarded the
contract.

D. If the coverage period shown on the contractor's current certificate of coverage ends during the duration of the
project, the contractor must, prior to the end of the coverage period, file a new certificate of coverage with the governmental
entity showing that coverage has been extended.

E. The contractor shall obtain from each person to whom it contracts providing services on a project, and provide to
the governmental entity:

(1) a certificate of coverage, prior to that person beginning work on the project,

so the governmental entity will have on file certificates of coverage showing coverage

for all persons providing services on the project: and

(2) no later than seven days after receipt by the contractor, a new certificate of coverage

showing extension of coverage, if the coverage period shown on the current certificate of

coverage ends during the duration of the project.

F. The contractor shall retain all required certificates of coverage for the duration of the project and for one year
thereafter.

G. The contractor shall notify the governmental entity in writing by certified mail or personal delivery, within 30 days
after the contractor knew or should have known, of any change that materially affects the provision of coverage of any
persons providing services on the project.

H. The contractor shall post on each project site a notice, in the text, form and manner prescribed by the Texas
Workers' Compensation Commission, informing all persons providing services on the project that they are required to be
covered, and stating how a person may verify coverage and report lack of coverage.

I. The contractor shall contractually require each person with whom it contracts to provide services on a project, to:

(1) provide coverage, based on proper reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts and filing of any coverage
agreements, which meets the statutory requirements of Texas Labor Code, Section 401.011 (44) for all of its employees
providing services on the project, for the duration of the project;

(2) provide to the contractor, prior to that person beginning work on the project, a certificate of coverage showing that
coverage is being provided for all employees of the person providing services on the project, for the duration of the project;
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Texas Workers’ Compensation Requirement

(3) provide the contractor, prior to the end of the coverage period, a new certificate of coverage showing extension of
coverage, if the coverage period shown on the current certificate of coverage ends during the duration of the project;

(4) obtain from each other person with whom it contracts, and provide to the contractor:

(a) a certificate of coverage, prior to the other person beginning work on the project; and

(b) a new certificate of coverage showing extension of coverage, prior to the end of the coverage period, if the coverage
period shown on the current certificate of coverage ends during the duration of the project;

(5) retain all required certificates of coverage on file for the duration of the project and for one year thereafter;

(6) notify the governmental entity in writing by certified mail or personal delivery, within 10 days after the person knew or
should have known, of any change that materially affects the provision of coverage of any person providing services on the
project; and

(7) contractually require each person with whom it contracts, to perform as required by paragraphs (1) - (7), with the
certificates of coverage to be provided to the person for whom they are providing services.

J. By signing this contract or providing or causing to be provided a certificate of coverage, the contractor is
representing to the governmental entity that all employees of the contractor who will provide services on the
project will be covered by workers' compensation coverage for the duration of the project, that the coverage will
be based on proper reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts, and that all coverage agreements will be
filed with the appropriate insurance carrier or, in the case of a self-insured, with the commission's Division of
Self-Insurance Regulation.  Providing false or misleading information may subject the contractor to administrative
penalties, criminal penalties, civil penalties, or other civil actions.

K. The contractor's failure to comply with any of these provisions is a breach of contract by the contractor, which
entitles the governmental entity to declare the contract void if the contractor does not remedy the breach within ten days
after receipt of notice of breach from the governmental entity.

___________________________________________ 

Date 

___________________________________________ 

Printed Name and Title 

_____________________________________ 

Contractor 

_____________________________________ 

By: Signature  

BID NUMBER: 23- 7 

PROJECT: Killeen Community Center & Senior Center Expansion and Renovation 
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SECTION 3 EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES CLAUSE

In accordance with the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 (12 U.S.C. 1701u) (Section 3) Part 135 

A. The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of section 3 of the Housing and Urban
Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u (section 3). The purpose of section 3 is to ensure that employment
and other economic opportunities generated by HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects covered by section 3, shall, to the
greatest extent feasible, be directed to low- and very low-income persons, particularly persons who are recipients of HUD
assistance for housing.

B. The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 135, which implement section 3. As
evidenced by their execution of this contract, the parties to this contract certify that they are under no contractual or other
impediment that would prevent them from complying with the part 135 regulations.

C. The contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or representative of workers with which the contractor has a
collective bargaining agreement or other understanding, if any, a notice advising the labor organization or workers'
representative of the contractor's commitments under this section 3 clause, and will post copies of the notice in conspicuous
places at the work site where both employees and applicants for training and employment positions can see the notice. The
notice shall describe the section 3 preference, shall set forth minimum number and job titles subject to hire, availability of
apprenticeship and training positions, the qualifications for each; and the name and location of the person(s) taking
applications for each of the positions; and the anticipated date the work shall begin.

D. The contractor agrees to include this section 3 clause in every subcontract subject to compliance with regulations in 24
CFR part 135, and agrees to take appropriate action, as provided in an applicable provision of the subcontract or in this
section 3 clause, upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR part 135. The contractor
will not subcontract with any subcontractor where the contractor has notice or knowledge that the subcontractor has been
found in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR part 135.

E. The contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, including training positions, that are filled (1) after the
contractor is selected but before the contract is executed, and (2) with persons other than those to whom the regulations of
24 CFR part 135 require employment opportunities to be directed, were not filled to circumvent the contractor's obligations
under 24 CFR part 135.

F. Noncompliance with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 135 may result in sanctions, termination of this contract for
default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD assisted contracts.

G. With respect to work performed in connection with section 3 covered Indian housing assistance, section 7(b) of the
Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 450e) also applies to the work to be performed under
this contract. Section 7(b) requires that to the greatest extent feasible (i) preference and opportunities for training and
employment shall be given to Indians, and (ii) preference in the award of contracts and subcontracts shall be given to Indian
organizations and Indian-owned Economic Enterprises. Parties to this contract that are subject to the provisions of section 3
and section 7(b) agree to comply with section 3 to the maximum extent feasible, but not in derogation of compliance with
section 7(b).
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In accordance with the regulations governing the Employment opportunities for low and very low-income persons and 
section 3 covered contracts, the bidder/Contractor CERTIFIES that he has read and will comply with these conditions: 

__________________________________  ____________________  

Signature / Authorized Official Title                Date 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

Company 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address    City    State 

BID NUMBER: 23- 7 

PROJECT: Killeen Community Center & Senior Center Expansion and Renovation 
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City of Killeen
Community Development Department 

Subcontracting with Small and Minority Firms, 
Women’s Business Enterprise, and Labor Surplus Area Firms; 

UTILIZATION REPORT 

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the City of Killeen place increased emphasis on the 
utilization of Minority Firms, Women’s Business Enterprise, and Labor Surplus Area Firms on all Community 
Development Block Grant funded projects. The City, therefore, strongly recommends that contractors bidding on this 
project give serious consideration to the utilization of minority subcontractors and materials providers. 

In order to make every effort to achieve compliance with this directive, the Community Development Department will 
require a minority utilization report on all bid proposals submitted for this project.  Forms must include a dollar amount and 
the percentage of work to be done by a minority/woman-owned contractor, subcontractor, or materials providers.  For the 
purpose of this report, the definition of a minority will reflect ethnic minorities only (Black or African American, 
Hispanic/Latino, American Indian/Alaskan Native, Asian/Pacific Islander). Although final bid decisions will be made 
primarily upon the lowest overall bid prices submitted, consideration will be given to the fulfillment of the minority usage 
requirement. The City retains and may utilize the right to reject any and all bids that do not include the suggested five 
percent minority utilization. Furthermore, the City retains the option to reject the lowest bid in favor of another bid that 
would contribute to the achievement of the minority utilization goal.  

The Contractor shall take the following steps to ensure that, whenever possible, subcontracts are awarded to small business 
firms, minority firms, women’s business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms: 

(a) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women’s business enterprises on solicitation lists;

(b) Ensuring that small and minority businesses and women’s business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential
sources;

(c) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum
participation by small and minority businesses and women’s business enterprises;

(d) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirements of the contract permit, that encourage participation by small
and minority businesses and women’s business enterprises; and

(e) Using the services and assistance of the U.S. Small Business Administration, the Minority Business Development
Agency of the U.S. Department of Commerce, and State and local governmental small business agencies.

In accordance with the applicable statutes, the regulations governing the Special conditions for Community Development 
Department contracts, the bidder/Contractor CERTIFIES that he has read and will comply with these conditions: 

___________________________________ 

Signature / Authorized Official     Title 

__________________________________________________________________________________________   

Company 

______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address    City    State  

Date:  _______________________ 

BID NUMBER: 23- 7 

PROJECT: Killeen Community Center & Senior Center Expansion and Renovation 
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SUBCONTRACTING WITH SMALL AND MINORITY FIRMS, WOMEN’S BUSINESS ENTERPRISE,

AND LABOR SURPLUS AREA FIRMS; AND UTILIZATION FORM

This form must be completed as accurately as possible

Contractor Name: ___________________________________________________________________
Address:  ___________________________________________________________________
Telephone No:  ___________________________________________________________________

BID NUMBER: 23- 7 

PROJECT: Killeen Community Center & Senior Center Expansion and Renovation  

Total Bid Proposal Amount:  $_________________________________________

Total dollar amount of bid for work to be done by a minority, women’s business and labor surplus area contractor, 
subcontractor, materials providers, or firms. $______________________________

Minority Business Enterprises (MBE)
Alaskan Native or 
American Indian

Asian 
or Pacific Islander

Black
– Non-Hispanic

Hispanic White 
Non-Hispanic

A. Contracts Total
1. Number

2. Dollar Amount
B. Sub-Contracts

1. Number
2. Dollar Amount

Women Business Enterprises
C. Contracts Total Women Business Enterprise Male
1. Number

2. Dollar Amount
D. Sub-Contracts

1. Number
2. Dollar Amount

Employees Expected to be Employed by Contractor

Job Classification Total Number
of Positions

Alaskan Native or
American Indian

Asian or
Pacific Islander

Black –
Non-Hispanic

Hispanic
White

Non-Hispanic

Total

Women Business Enterprises
Total Women Business Enterprise Male
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Section 3 Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968   

12 U.S.C 1701u (38 FR 20906) 

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PLAN 

THIS FORM MUST BE COMPLETED AS ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE

GENERAL INFORMATION 

A. General Contractor

Name and Address: _____________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________ 

B. Type  of Contract: _________________________________________________________ 

C. Amount of Contract: _________________________________________________________ 

D. Location of Project: _________________________________________________________ 

II. INFORMATION ON EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING OF LOWER INCOME RESIDENTS IN THE
SECTION 3 PROJECT AREA.

A. List Employment Agencies, News Media, Minority Organizations, Union Halls, or other organizations to be used
in recruiting employees.  Completed "Preliminary Statement of Work Force Needs" will be mailed to each
organization contacted.

Name Address 

__________________________ _______________________________ 

__________________________ _______________________________ 

__________________________ _______________________________ 

B. If no recruitment or hiring is anticipated, briefly explain why.

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

C. Indicate the percentage of low-income residents you hope to hire in relation to total employees hired, and the time-
frame involved.

1. Percentage of Total Employees: __________ 

2. All subcontractors are expected

to be awarded by: __________ 

III. LIST THE NUMBER AND DOLLAR AMOUNT OF ALL SUBCONTRACTS EXPECTED TO BE AWARDED
PERTAINING TO CONSTRUCTION OF THIS PROJECT.

Type of Subcontract Amount ($) 

___________________________ _____________________________ 

___________________________ _____________________________ 

___________________________ _____________________________ 

IV. STEPS TO PROMOTE ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY FOR LOCAL SMALL BUSINESS.

A. List the Type and Dollar Amount of each Subcontract, which may be awarded to small businesses.

1. General Construction Contractors with three (3) years average gross income of less than $12,000,000.

Type of Subcontract  Amount ($) 

__________________________ ________________ 

__________________________ ________________ 
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2. Plumbing, Electrical and Structural Steel with three (3) years gross income of less than $1,000,000.

Type of Subcontract Amount ($)

_________________________ ________________ 

_________________________ ________________ 

Affirmative Action Plan 

3. All other Contractors with three (3) years gross income of less than $1,000,000.

Type of Subcontract Amount ($) 

_________________________ ________________

_________________________ ________________ 

B. Identify below the names and addresses of business organizations, such as Chamber of Commerce, to be contacted
to attract small businesses.

Name  Address 

_________________________ ____________________ 

_________________________ ____________________ 

C. Identify news media to be used to advertise contracts.

Name Address 

_______________________ _________________________________ 

_______________________ ________________________________ 

D. Explain how you intend to persuade subcontractors to cooperate in employing lower income residents and/or small
businesses.

____________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________

V. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Lower income residents and owners of small businesses will be informed that in the event of a grievance or
complaint against the municipality or the general Contractor, they may file by mail a grievance with:

A. Assistant Secretary for Equal Opportunity and Fair Housing

Department of Housing and Urban Development

Washington, D.C.  20410

B. Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity Division

Department of Housing and Urban Development

Dallas Area Office

2001 Bryan Tower

Dallas, Texas 75201

VI. CERTIFICATIONS

A. Subcontractors will be informed of their requirement to submit copies of their Section 3 (Affirmative Action Plan) to
the municipality to determine whether established goals will accomplish the objectives of Section 3 regulations.

B. Negotiable contracts will be negotiated with Section 3 business (small businesses) if Federal, State, and local
regulations allow it.
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___________________________ 

TITLE 

___________________________________________  

PRINTED NAME 

__________________________________________ 

SIGNATURE 

BID NUMBER: 23- 7 

PROJECT: Killeen Community Center & Senior Center Expansion and Renovation  
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CITY OF KILLEEN

Community Development Department 

CERTIFICATION OF CONTRACTOR 

REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 

________________________________________________________________________ 

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, 7 CFR 
Part 3017, Section 3017.510, Participants’ responsibilities. The regulations were published as Part IV of the January 30, 
1989 Federal Register (pages 4722-4733). 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

BEFORE COMPLETING CERTIFICATION, READ INSTRUCTIONS 

1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:

a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from
covered transaction by an Federal department or agency;

b) Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered
against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or
performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal
or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or
local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and

d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public transactions
(Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default.

2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Organization Name 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Name(s) and Title(s) of Authorized Representatives 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Signature(s)         Date 

BID NUMBER: 23- 7 

PROJECT: Killeen Community Center & Senior Center Expansion and Renovation 
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APPENDIX A 
CITY OF KILLEEN 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. General Conditions

Bidders are required to submit their Bid upon the following express conditions:

(a) Bidders shall make all investigation necessary to thoroughly inform themselves regarding plant and
facilities for delivery of material and equipment as required by the Bid conditions. No plea of
ignorance by the bidder of conditions that exist or that may hereafter exist as a result of failure or
omission on the part of the bidder to make the necessary examinations and investigations, or failure
to fulfill in every detail the requirements of the contract documents, will be accepted as a basis for
varying the requirements of the City or the compensation to the bidder.

(b) Unless specifically stated otherwise in the specifications, only new products or equipment will be
acceptable.

2. Preparation of Bid

Bid will be prepared in accordance with the following:

(a) All information required by the Bid shall be furnished. The bidder shall print or type his/her name
and manually or electronically sign the Bid and each continuation sheet on which an entry is made.

(b) Unit prices shall be shown and where there is an error in extension of the price, the unit price shall
govern.

(c) Alternate Bids will not be considered unless authorized by the City within the specifications.

(d) Proposed delivery time must be shown and shall include weekends and holidays if requested by the
City.

(e) The City qualifies for exemption from State and Local Sales and Use Taxes pursuant to the
provision of Article 20.04(f) of the Texas Limited Sales, Excise and Use Tax Act. Taxes normally
levied on the purchase, rental and lease of materials, supplies and equipment used or consumed in
performance of the Contract may be exempted by issuing to suppliers an exemption certificate in
lieu of tax. Exemption certificates comply with State Comptroller of Public Accounts Ruling No.
95-0.07. Any such exemption certificate issued in lieu of tax shall be subject to State Comptroller
of Public Accounts Ruling No. 95-0.09, as amended. Failure by the Bidder or the bidder’s
Subcontractors s to take advantage of the City’s exemption and to obtain such exemption
certificate shall make him responsible for paying taxes incurred on materials furnished on the
Project without additional cost to or reimbursement by the City.

3. Description of Supplies

Any catalog of manufacturer's reference used in describing an item is merely descriptive, and not restrictive,
unless otherwise noted, and is used only to indicate type and quality of material. Bidders are required to state
exactly what they intend to furnish; otherwise they will be required to furnish the item as specified.

4. Submission of Bid

By submitting your Bid, you acknowledge that the City of Killeen will not accept any Bid, or execute any
submitted contract in conjunction with a Bid that requires the City to agree to any of the following:
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Governing law other than the law of the State of Texas
Venue other than Bell County
Mandatory arbitration
Artificial limitation of liability
Artificial statute of limitation
Waiver of trial by jury
Indemnify a vendor

(a) Bidders are encouraged to submit bids electronically through the City’s OpenGov e-Bidding website 
below, however, if submitted by mail or hand delivered; bid and changes thereto shall be enclosed
in a sealed envelope addressed to the Purchasing Office, City of Killeen at the address below. The
names and address of Bidder, the date and hour of the Bid opening and the Bid number shall be
placed on the outside of the envelope.

(b) Bids must be submitted on the forms furnished. Telegraphic Bids will not be considered. However,
Bids may be modified by written notice provided such notice is received prior to the time and date
set for the Bid opening.

(c) All Bid documents shall be sealed and submitted no later than the specified date and hour of the Bid
opening to:

Electronically submit bids to OpenGov e-Bidding Site: https://procurement.opengov.com/portal/killeentexas 

OR 

Delivery Address: 
City of Killeen 

Attn: Purchasing Division 
802 N 2nd Street, Building E, 2nd Floor 

Killeen, TX 76541 

5. Rejection of Bid

(a) The City may reject a Bid if:

1. The Bidder mistakes or conceals any material fact in the Bid, or if

2. The Bid does not strictly conform to law or the requirements of the Bid, or if

3. The Bid is conditional, except that the Bidder may qualify his Bid for acceptance by the
City as an "All or None" basis.

(b) The City may, however, reject all Bids whenever it is deemed in the best interest of the City to do
so, and may reject any part of a Bid unless the Bid has been qualified as provided in section 5(a) 3
above.

6. Withdrawal of Bid

A bidder may withdraw a bid that has been submitted at any time up to the due date and time. To accomplish
this, a written request signed by an authorized representative of the bidder must be submitted to the Director
of Procurement and Contract Management at lluciano@killeentexas.gov . All bids shall be valid for a period
of ninety (90) days after the bid opening
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7. Late Bid or Modifications

Bid and modifications received after the time set for the Bid opening will not be considered.

8. Clarification or Objection to Bid Specifications

If any person contemplating submitting a Bid for this contract is in doubt as to the true meaning of the
specifications, or other Bid documents, or any part thereof, he may submit to Purchasing, a request for
clarification by the deadline established in the Bid. All such requests for information shall be made in writing
and the person submitting the request will be responsible for its prompt delivery. Any  interpretation of the
Bid, if made, will be made only by an addendum duly issued. A copy of such addendum will be distributed
to all known bidders who have expressed an interest in this bid. The City will not be responsible for any other
explanation or interpretation of the proposed Bid made or given prior to the award of the contract. Any
objection to the specifications and requirements, as set forth in the Bid documents must be filed in writing
with the Purchasing Division by the deadline established in the Bid.

9. Discounts

(a) Prompt payment discounts will be considered in making the award provided the period of the
discount offered is sufficient to permit payment within such period in the regular course of business.

(b) In connection with any discount offered, time will be computed from the date of receipt of supplies
or services or from the date a correct invoice is received, whichever is the later date. Payment is
deemed to be made on the date of mailing of the check.

10. Award of the Contract

(a) The contract will be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder. “Lowest responsible bidder”  means
the Bidder submitting the lowest bid meeting all requirements of the specifications, instructions, and 
terms and conditions of the bid and who has the financial and practical ability to fully and reliably
perform all obligations of the Contract, taking into consideration qualifications and past
performance of the Bidder. The following are considered examples of performance that  is not
responsible and may lead to a determination that the Bidder is not responsible:

Falsification of information provided in bid response;
 Non-observance of safety requirements; 
 Failure to meet requirements of federal, state, or local law, as applicable, including 

employment; 
 Substantial failure to adhere to contractually agreed-upon schedules; and 
 Poor past performance on City projects such as use of defective materials, refusal to 

correct defective work not in accordance with contract documents, failure to reasonably 
resolve disputes, termination for cause, or performance leading to litigation. 
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Determination of most advantageous Bid for the municipality may be based on, but not limited to:

* Unit price
* Total Bid price
* Terms and discounts
* Delivery date
* Product warranty
* Special needs and requirements of City
* Past experience with product/service
* City's evaluation of the bidder's ability, financial,

strength, and ethical standards
* Quality of the bidder’s goods or services
* The extent to which the goods or services meet the

municipality’s needs

* Bidder's past performance
* Demurrage charges, freight costs and mileage
* Estimated costs of supplies, maintenance, etc.
* Estimated surplus value, life expectancy
* Results of testing samples
* Conformity to specifications
* Training requirements, location, etc.
* Location of maintenance facility/service person;

ability to provide for minimum down time
The total long-term cost to the municipality to
acquire the bidder’s goods or services

* Reputation of bidder and of bidder goods and
services

(b) The City reserves the right to accept any item or group of items of this Bid, unless the Bidder
qualifies his Bid by specific limitation. Reference section 5(a) 3 above.

(c) A written award of acceptance mailed or otherwise furnished to the successful Bidder will then be
followed up with a contract/service agreement for review by the City’s legal team, if not otherwise
specified within.

(d) Prices must be quoted "F.O.B. Destination (Killeen) with all transportation charges prepaid," unless
otherwise specified in the Bid.

(e) If identical Bids are received from two or more bidders and those Bids are the lowest and best Bid,
the tie shall be broken in accordance with provisions in Section 271.901 of the Texas Local
Government Code.

(f) As stated in Section 271.905 of the Texas Local Government Code, “In purchasing under this title
any real property or personal property that is not affixed to real property, if a local government
receives one or more competitive sealed Bid from a bidder whose principal place of business is in
the local government and whose Bid is within three percent of the lowest Bid price received by the
local government from a bidder who is not a resident of the municipality, the local government may
enter into a contract with: (1) the lowest bidder; or (2) the bidder whose principal place of business
is in the local government if the governing body of the local government determines, in writing, that
the local bidder offers the local government the best combination of contract price and additional
economic development opportunities for the local government created by the contract award,
including the employment of residents of the local government and increased tax revenues to the
local government.”

(g) As stated in Section 271.9051(b) of the Texas Local Government Code, “In purchasing real property 
or personal property that is not affixed to real property, or services, if a municipality receives one
or more competitive sealed Bid from a bidder whose principal place of business is in the
municipality and whose Bid is within five percent of the lowest Bid price received by the
municipality from a bidder who is not a resident of the municipality, the municipality may enter into
a contract for an expenditure of less than $100,000 or a contract for other purchases in an amount
of less than $500,000 with: (1) the lowest bidder; or (2) the bidder whose principal place of business
is in the municipality if the governing body of the local government determines, in writing, that the
local bidder offers the municipality the best combination of contract price and additional economic
development opportunities for the municipality created by the contract award, including the
employment of residents of the municipality and increased tax revenues to the municipality.”

11. Ex Parte Communication
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Please note that to ensure the proper and fair evaluation of a proposal, the City prohibits ex parte 
communication (e.g., unsolicited) initiated by the Proposer to a City Official or employee evaluating or 
considering the proposal prior to the time a formal decision has been made. Questions and other 
communication from proposers will be permissible with only the Director of Procurement and Contract 
Management until the time and the day specified as the deadline for questions. Any communication between 
Proposer and the City after the deadline for questions will be initiated by the appropriate City Official or 
employee in order to obtain information or clarification needed to develop a proper and accurate evaluation 
of the proposals. Participation in any ex parte communication, whether or not initiated by the 
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Proposer, may be grounds for disqualifying the offending proposer from consideration or award of the 
solicitation then in evaluation, or any future solicitation. 

Additionally, neither the City of Killeen City Council nor City staff, except in the course of City- 
Sponsored inquiries, briefings, interviews, or presentations, shall initiate any contact with a 
Proposer or directly discuss or promote any proposal with any Proposers, including their agents 
and representatives. 

12. Bid Protest

Any bidder wishing to file a protest concerning alleged improprieties with this solicitation must submit the
protest in written format to the Purchasing Division within 5 business days after the specified time of the Bid
opening. The formal written protest must identify the name of the bidder contesting the solicitation, the
project name and number, and the specific grounds for the protest with all supporting documentation. A
response to the protest will be prepared by Purchasing within 10 business days of receipt of the protest. All
determinations made by the City are final.

13. Termination for Governmental Non-Appropriations

This contract is a commitment of the City’s current revenues only. Should the terms of the Bid require
payment of funds over more than the current fiscal year ending September 30, the following shall apply:

(a) For each lease, City represents and warrants: that it has appropriated and budgeted the necessary
fund to make all rent payments required pursuant to such lease for the remainder of the fiscal year
in which the payment term commences; and that it currently intends to make rent payments for the
full lease term as scheduled in the applicable payment schedule if funds are appropriated for the rent
payment in each succeeding fiscal year by its governing body. Without contractually committing
itself to do so, City reasonably believes that monies in an amount sufficient to make all rent
payments can and will lawfully be appropriated; therefore, City agrees to budget requests to include
the rent payments payable during each fiscal year in the budget requests presented to City’s
governing body for each fiscal year; provided, that City’s governing body retains authority to
approve or reject any such budget request.  All rent payments shall be payable out of the  general
funds of City or out of other funds legally appropriated therefore. Lessor agrees that no lease will
be a general obligation of City and no lease shall constitute a pledge of either the full faith and credit
of City or the taxing power of City.

(b) If City’s governing body fails to appropriate sufficient funds in any fiscal year for rent property or
other payments due under a lease and if other funds are not legally appropriated for such payment,
then a non-appropriation event shall be deemed to have occurred. If a non-appropriation event
occurs, then: (1) City shall give lessor immediate notice of such non-appropriation event and provide 
written evidence of such failure by City’s governing body; (2) on the return date, City shall return
to Lessor all of the equipment covered by the affected lease, at City’s sole expense; (3) the affected
lease shall terminate on the return date without penalty to City; (4) return date means the last day of
the fiscal year for which appropriations were made for the rent payments due under a lease.

14. Termination of Contract

This contract shall remain in effect until the contract expires, delivery/completion and acceptance of products
and/or performance of services ordered or until terminated by either party with a thirty (30) day written notice 
prior to any cancellation. All bidders must state therein the reasons for such cancellation. City reserves the
right to award a cancelled contract to next best offeror as it deems to be in the best interest of the City.

15. Assurance of Compliance
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For Equal Employment Opportunity and Small and/or Minority Business Enterprise Requirements the bidder 
agrees that if this Bid is accepted, he/she will not engage in employment practices which have the effect of 
discriminating against employees or prospective employees because of race, color, religion, national origin, 
sex, age, handicap, or political belief or affiliation. 

16. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Questionnaire

The Bidder agrees that if a member of the City Council a Councilmember’s close relative or any officer or
employee of the City has a financial interest, direct or indirect, or by reason of ownership of stock in any
corporation, in any contract with the City, or be financially interested, directly or indirectly, in the sale to the
City any land, materials, supplies or services except on behalf of the City, as an officer or employee, the
official shall file before a vote or decision on any matter involving the business entity or the real property, an
affidavit stating the nature and extent of the interest and shall abstain from further participation in the matter
if:

(a) in the case of a substantial interest in a business entity the action on the matter will have a special
economic effect on the business entity that is distinguishable from the effect on the public; or

(b) in the case of a substantial interest in real property, it is reasonably foreseeable that an action on the
matter will have a special economic effect on the value of the property, distinguishable from its effect
on the public.

Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code mandates the public disclosure of certain information 
concerning persons doing business or seeking to do business with the City of Killeen, including affiliations 
and business and financial relationships such persons may have with the City of Killeen. An explanation of 
the requirements of Chapter 176 and complete text of the new law are available at: 
https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/data/forms/conflict/CIQ.pdf 

17. Gratuities

It shall be a breach of ethics to offer, give, or agree to give any employee of the City or for any employee of
the City to solicit or accept from another person, a gratuity or an offer of employment in connection with any
decision regarding any part of a program requirement, proposal, or purchase request pending before the City.

18. Kickbacks

It shall be a breach of ethics for any payment, gratuity, or offer of employment to be made by or on behalf of
a subcontractor under a contract to the prime contractor or higher tier subcontractor for any contract for the
City, or any person associated therewith, as an inducement for the award of a subcontract or order.

19. Venue for Legal Action

This agreement shall be governed and construed according to the laws of the State of Texas. Venue for
purposes of any and all lawsuits, causes of actions, claims or disputes shall be in Bell County, Texas.

20. Conflicts in Terms and Conditions for Bids

If any conflicts exist between the Terms and Conditions for Bids and the standard form of agreement between 
the owner and Bidder, the standard form of agreement between the owner and bidder shall prevail.

21. Disclosure of Interested Parties

Texas Government Code Section 2252.908 requires that parties contracting with governmental entities
submit a disclosure of interest parties form for contracts entered into after January 1, 2016. Successful bidders 
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shall electronically submit the form at the following website: 
https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm and provide the City with a certified copy 
prior to Council approval of the Bid award.

22. Acknowledgement – “Boycott Israel”

By signing and submitting this bid the vendor hereby verifies that it does not boycott Israel and will not
boycott Israel during the term of this contract. Boycotting Israel is defined in Texas Government Code section
808.001 to mean refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or taking any action that is
intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations specifically with Israel, or with
a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action
made for ordinary business purposes.

23. Acknowledgement – ‘Boycott Energy Companies”

By signing and submitting this bid the vendor hereby verifies that it does not boycott energy companies and
will not boycott energy companies during the term of the contract. “Boycott energy company” is defined in

Texas Government Code section 809.001 to means, without an ordinary business purpose, refusing to deal
with terminating business activities with, or otherwise taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict
economic harm on, or limit commercial relations with a company because the company: (A) engages in the
exploration, production, utilization, transportation, sale, or manufacturing of fossil fuel-based energy and
does not commit or pledge to meet environmental standards beyond applicable federal and state law; or (B)
does business with a company described by Paragraph (A).

24. Acknowledgement – “Prohibition on contracts with companies that discriminate against firearm and
ammunition industries”

By signing and submitting this bid the vendor hereby verifies that it does not have a practice, policy, guidance 
or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association and will not discriminate
during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association. Discriminate against a
firearm entity or a firearm trade association are defined in Texas Government Code section 2274.001 as (A)
with respect to the entity or association, to (i) refuse to engage in the trade of any goods or services; (ii)
refrain from continuing an existing business relationship; (iii) terminate an existing business relationship; or
(iv) otherwise express a prejudice against the entity or association; and (B) does not include the established
policies of a merchant, retail seller, or platform that restrict or prohibit the listing or selling of ammunition,
firearms, or firearm accessories.

SIGNATURE: DATE: 

PRINT NAME: 





Revised 
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CERTIFICATE OF COPORATE RESOLUTION

I, ________________________________________________, Secretary, hereby certify as follows:

1. I am the duly elected, qualified and acting Secretary of ______________________________________,

a ___________________________________________ corporation, (the “Corporation”.

2. The Corporation is duly incorporated, legally existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of

_____________, and is duly qualified to transact business and to own, operate and develop its properties in the

State of _____________________.

3. Attached hereto and made a part hereof is a true and complete copy of the resolution duly and legally adopted

on _______________________________ by the Board of Directors of the Corporation in accordance with the

By-laws of the Corporation and applicable law.  Such resolutions have been duly entered in the minutes of such

meeting in the minute book of the corporation and have not been rescinded or modified in any respect and are

presently in full force and effect.

4. The following persons are duly elected, qualified and acting officers of the corporation and hold respective

offices set opposite their names:

__________________________________________ :  President

__________________________________________ : Vice President

__________________________________________ : Secretary

TO CERTIFY WHICH I have executed this certificate this _________ day of _________________, _______.
____________________________________
Secretary

STATE OF ___________________________
COUNTY OF_________________________

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____________ day of ___________________, ________ 

by ________________________________________, Secretary, of 

__________________________________________________________, a corporation, on behalf of said 

Corporation.

____________________________________
Notary Public, State of _________________
Name: ______________________________
My commission expires________________



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HCS Inc.  Commercial General Contractor 
365 Wayside Dr. Waco TX 76705 | Office 254.829.3200 | Fax 254.829.3201 | info@hcs-gc.com 

05. Safety Record
a. OSHA 300 Logs
b. Loss Run Report
c. Loss Ratio Report
d. Experience Modifier Report
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State Wt Exp Excess
Losses

Expected
Losses

Exp Prim
Losses

Act Exc Losses Ballast Act Inc Losses Act Prim
Losses

TX 6,909 10,193 3,284 0 24,500 0 0.06

(A)
Wt

(B) (C) Exp Excess
Losses (D - E)

(D) Expected
Losses

(E) Exp Prim
Losses

(F) Act Exc
Losses (H - I)

(G) Ballast (H) Act Inc
Losses

(I) Act Prim
Losses

.06 6,909 10,193 3,284 0 24,500 0 0

SARAPARAP

 (J)

.89

 (J) / (K)
Exp Mod

34,693

Primary Losses Stabilizing Value Ratable Excess Totals

Expected

FLARAP

3,284 30,994 415

(I) C * (1 - A) + G  (A) * (F)

 (K) (A) * (C)C * (1 - A) + G(E)

Factors

30,994Actual 0 30,994 0

MAARAP

05-26-202229939-000 Policy: 0001144851 Eff-Date:Carrier: Exp-Date:05-26-2021

Risk ID: 420867158HCS INC COMMERCIAL GENERAL CONTRACTOR

WORKERS COMPENSATION EXPERIENCE RATING

State:Rating Effective Date: Production Date: TEXAS05/26/2022 12/14/2021

Risk Name:

© Copyright 1993-2022, All rights reserved. This product is comprised of compilations and information which are the proprietary and exclusive property of the National Council on Compensation Insurance,
Inc. (NCCI). No further use, dissemination, sale, transfer, assignment or disposition of this product, in whole or in part, may be made without the prior written consent of NCCI. This product is furnished “As is”
“As available” “With all defects” and includes information available at the time of publication only. NCCI makes no representations or warranties of any kind relating to the product and hereby expressly
disclaims any and all express, statutory, or implied warranties, including the implied warranty of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, accuracy, completeness, currentness, or correctness of the
product or information contained therein. This product and the information contained therein are to be used exclusively for underwriting, premium calculation and other Insurance purposes and may not be
used for any other purpose including but not limited to safety scoring for project bidding purposes. All responsibility for the use of and for any and all results derived or obtained through the use of the product
and information are the end user’s and NCCI shall not have any liability thereto.
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42-TEXAS

Carrier: 29939 Policy No. 0001144851 Eff Date: 05/26/2018 Exp Date: 05/26/2019

ELR D-
Ratio

Payroll Expected
Losses

Exp Prim
Losses

Claim Data IJ

Firm ID: Firm Name: HCS INC COMMERCIAL GENERAL CONTRACTOR

OF Act Inc
Losses

Act Prim
Losses

Code

62,515 304869.355403 1.39

849,139 4431,528.295606 .18

2,431 514.358227 .57

62,400 1025.398809 .04

98,922 1430.468810 .03

Total Act Inc
Losses:Policy Total: 1,075,407

Subject
Premium: 010,606

42-TEXAS

Carrier: 29939 Policy No. 0001144851 Eff Date: 05/26/2019 Exp Date: 05/26/2020

ELR D-
Ratio

Payroll Expected
Losses

Exp Prim
Losses

Claim Data IJ

Firm ID: Firm Name: HCS INC COMMERCIAL GENERAL CONTRACTOR

OF Act Inc
Losses

Act Prim
Losses

Code

115,441 5621,605.355403 1.39

943,436 4921,698.295606 .18

62,400 1025.398809 .04

138,481 1942.468810 .03

Total Act Inc
Losses:Policy Total: 1,259,758

Subject
Premium: 018,356

42-TEXAS

Carrier: 29939 Policy No. 0001144851 Eff Date: 05/26/2020 Exp Date: 05/26/2021

ELR D-
Ratio

Payroll Expected
Losses

Exp Prim
Losses

Claim Data IJ

Firm ID: Firm Name: HCS INC COMMERCIAL GENERAL CONTRACTOR

OF Act Inc
Losses

Act Prim
Losses

Code

174,025 8472,419.355403 1.39

1,019,339 5321,835.295606 .18

62,400 1025.398809 .04

259,622 3678.468810 .03

Total Act Inc
Losses:Policy Total: 1,515,386

Subject
Premium: 019,950

Risk ID: 420867158HCS INC COMMERCIAL GENERAL CONTRACTOR

WORKERS COMPENSATION EXPERIENCE RATING

State:Rating Effective Date: Production Date: TEXAS05/26/2022 12/14/2021

Risk Name:

© Copyright 1993-2022, All rights reserved. This product is comprised of compilations and information which are the proprietary and exclusive property of the National Council on Compensation Insurance,
Inc. (NCCI). No further use, dissemination, sale, transfer, assignment or disposition of this product, in whole or in part, may be made without the prior written consent of NCCI. This product is furnished “As is”
“As available” “With all defects” and includes information available at the time of publication only. NCCI makes no representations or warranties of any kind relating to the product and hereby expressly
disclaims any and all express, statutory, or implied warranties, including the implied warranty of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, accuracy, completeness, currentness, or correctness of the
product or information contained therein. This product and the information contained therein are to be used exclusively for underwriting, premium calculation and other Insurance purposes and may not be
used for any other purpose including but not limited to safety scoring for project bidding purposes. All responsibility for the use of and for any and all results derived or obtained through the use of the product
and information are the end user’s and NCCI shall not have any liability thereto.

* Total  by Policy Year of all cases $2000 or less.

C Catastrophic Loss

D Disease Loss

E Employers Liability Loss

X Ex-Medical Coverage

# Limited Loss

U USL&HW
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